CITY COUNCIL “HYBRID?”

MEETING AGENDA v3
April 11, 2022
City Council Meeting 7:00 pm
LOCATION: City Council Chambers, City Hall
60 Pleasant Street, Newburyport
Zoom details:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81299990548
Or One tap mobile:
US: +19292056099,81299990548+#
Or Telephone:
US: +1 929 205 6099
Webinar ID: 812 9999 0548

MOMENT OF SILENCE

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

CALL TO ORDER

LATE FILE

e ORDRO00341 04 11 2022  Blue Wave Solar Pilot Negotiation

e ORDRO00342_04_11 2022 CPC-FY22-Supplementary Bartlet Mall-Historic Restoration Walkway Improv.
e COMMO00395_03_14 2022 St. & Sidewalk Repair Plan (Neighborhood & City Services/COTW)

e COMMO0406_04 11 2022 Pioneer League Letter re: Pickleball

i N =

PUBLIC COMMENT
MAYOR'S COMMENT

o o

CONSENT AGENDA

NOTE: ALL ITEMS LISTED UNDER CONSENT AGENDA WILL BE ENACTED BY ONE MOTION.
THERE WILL BE NO SEPARATE DISCUSSION OF THESE ITEMS. IF DISCUSSION IS DESIRED,
THAT ITEM WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA AND CONSIDERED
SEPARATELY.

7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
e March 28, 2022 (Approve)

8. COMMUNICATIONS

e COMMA402 04 11 2022 12 Cushing Ave Paper St. Inquiry (GG)

e APPL00068 04 11 2022 Flag Day 5K June 11" 4-8 pm (PS)

e APPL00069 04 11 2022  Newburyport Pioneer League Tag Day May 7th 9am-1pm (PS)

e COMMO00403 04 11 2022 Annual Audit of City’s FY2021 Financial Statements (B&F)

e APPL00070 04 11 2022  Spring Fest Chamber of Commerce May 14™-15" 10am-8pm  (PS)

e COMMO00404 04 11 2022 KP Law Opinion RE: Property Disposition & Votes (GG)

e COMMO0405 04 11 2022 Mayor’s Strategic Plan (GG&COTW)

9. TRANSFERS

e TRANO00123 04_11 2022 Fire-Foam & Equip $2000, Fire-New Hose Fit $3,000, and (B&F)
Fire-Protective Clothing $3,100 to Fire-Software $8,100
e TRANO00124 04 11 2022 RRFA Sale of Municipal Buildings $30K to (B&F)

NYS Center Schematic Design $30K


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81299990548

10. APPOINTMENTS

e APPT00308 04 11 2022 Marci Neville 16 Morin Rd. Council on Aging 4/29/2027
e APPT00309 04 11 2022 Jeanette Isabella 100 Water St. Emma Andrews Lib. Comm.  4/29/2023
e APPT00310_04 11 2022 Rebecca Regnet 25 Barton St. Trust Fund Comm. 4/15/2025
e APPT00311_04 11 2022 Nicole Whalen 12 Lafayette St. Parks Comm. 4/29/2027
e APPT00312 04 11 2022 George Aranea 19 Essex St. Cultural Council 4/29/2025

ALL ITEMS NOTED BELOW ARE REMOVED FROM THEIR RESPECTIVE COMMITTEES WITH THE
MOTION TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA

Ad Hoc Committee on Market Landing Park and COTW
ORDRO00326_03 14 2022 To Approve Sasaki Design Progress

BUDGET & FINANCE
e ORDRO00333 03 28 2022 CPC FY22 Supplementary Nock Tennis Restoration
e ORDRO00335 03 28 2022 ARPA 2.4M Streets Sidewalks

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
ORDRO00324 03 14 2022 Ad Hoc on Adaptive Reuse of Brown School
COMMO00401 03 28 2022  Ltrs. IFS Settlement
ORDRO00332_03 28 2022 Authorizing the Settlement - IFS and Planning Board Appeal (COTW)
ORDRO00337_03 28 2022 Settlement High Street Paving 150K (COTW)

NEIGHBORHOOD & CITY SERVICES
e ODNCO00109 03_14 2022 Amendment to Sidewalks Specifying Sidewalk Materials

e COMMO00395 03 14 2022 St. & Sidewalk Repair Plan (COTW)

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT

¢ COMMO00382 01 31 2022 Update from Global re 107 State Street
e (ODNCO00105 02 14 2022 Zoning Amendment Business Park Uses
e APPT00305 03 14 2022 Dan Mello 2B Fulton St. Waterfront Trust ~ 3/31/2027

PUBLIC SAFETY
e APPLO00067_03 28 2022 Newburyport Lions Club Road Race 8/2/2022
e ORDRO00331_03_28 2022 Loading Zone Green Street

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

REGULAR AGENDA

9. MAYOR'S UPDATE
10. FIRST READING APPOINTMENTS

11. COMMUNICATIONS
e COMMO00406_04 11 2022 LATE FILE Pioneer League Letter re: Pickleball

12. TRANSFERS



13. SECOND READING APPOINTMENTS

14. ORDERS

ORDR00338_04_11_2022
ORDR00339_04_11 2022
ORDR00340_04_11 2022
ORDR00341_04_11_2022
ORDR00342_04_11_2022

15. ORDINANCES

ODNC00106_02_14 2022

16. COMMITTEE ITEMS

Capital Improvement Program FY2023-2027

Authorizing Agreement between City and Daily News re Lot

Fair Share Resolution

LATE FILE - Blue Wave Solar Pilot Negotiation

LATE FILE CPC-FY22-Supplementary Bartlet Mall-Historic Restoration
Walkway Improvements

2" Reading CH2 COA Ordinance Amendment

Ad Hoc Committee on Economic Development

In Committee:

Ad Hoc Committee on Market Landing Park and COTW

In Committee:
ORDR00326 03 14 2022

To Approve Sasaki Design Progress

Budget & Finance

In Committee:
e ORDRO00333 03 28 2022 CPC FY22 Supplementary Nock Tennis Restoration
e ORDRO00335 03 28 2022 ARPA 2.4M Streets Sidewalks
e ORDRO00334 03 28 2022 ARPA Sea Wall Joppa Park 100K
e ORDRO00336_03 28 2022 ARPA Amesbury 250K
Education

In Committee:

General Government

In Committee:
ORDRO00324 03 14 2022

Ad Hoc on Adaptive Reuse of Brown School

COMMO00401 03 28 2022

Ltrs. IFS Settlement

ORDRO00332 03 28 2022

Authorizing the Settlement - IFS and Planning Board Appeal (COTW)

ORDRO00337 03 28 2022

Settlement High Street Paving 150K (COTW)

ORDR00319_02_14_2022

License & Permits

In Committee:
ODNCO047_01_27 2020
COMMO00385_01 31 2022
COMMO00388 01 31 2022

Neighborhoods & City Services
In Committee:

ODNCO00109 03 14 2022

Kelley School Funds Order

General Ordinance - Short Term Rental Units Rules
STRU Fire Sprinkler Systems
UPDATED STRU Fire Sprinkler Systems

Amendment to Sidewalks Specifying Sidewalk Materials

COMMO00395 03 14 2022

St. & Sidewalk Repair Plan (COTW)

COMM299_02_08_2021
ODNC102_11 08 2021
ODNC00103_01_10 2022

Phillips Dr. Neighborhood Committee Ltr
Ch. 17 Stormwater Management Revisions
Streets, Sidewalks, and Other Public Places Alterations & Maintenance



Planning & Development
In Committee:

COMMO00382 01 31 2022

Update from Global re 107 State Street

ODNCO00105 02 14 2022

Zoning Amendment Business Park Uses

APPT00305 03 14 2022

Dan Mello 2 B Fulton St. Waterfront Trust 3/31/2027

ODNCO046_01_27_2020
COMMO00398_03_28_2022
ORDR00330_03_28_2022

Public Safety
In Committee:

Zoning Amendment Short Term Rental Unit (STRU) (COTW)
Memo DHCD MBTA Housing Choice Briefing (COTW)
License Agreement between City and Friends of Plum Island Light

e APPL00067 03 28 2022 Newburyport Lions Club Road Race 8/2/2022
e ORDRO00331 03 28 2022 Loading Zone Green Street
e COMMO00396 03 14 2022  Ltr. Stephen Comley
e COMMO00390_02_28_2022 Gregory Caplan Ltr-Low St./Bright Horizons access to Fuller Field
Public Utilities
In Committee:
Rules
In Committee:

e ORDR239 02_8 2021

17. GOOD OF THE ORDER

18. ADJOURNMENT

Council Rule 7 and 10B



CONSENT AGENDA




CITY COUNCIL “HYBRID?”

MEETING MINUTES
March 28, 2022

Global Presentation on 107 State Street 7:00 pm
KEAAKIAAAA A AAKAAAAAAAAAA AR AAAAAAA A AAA A AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAArAAAhhhhhhhhhhhhhiiihiik
City Council Meeting 7:30 pm
LOCATION: City Council Chambers, City Hall
60 Pleasant Street, Newburyport
Zoom details:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81299990548
Or One tap mobile:

US: +19292056099,812999905484#
Or Telephone:
US: +1 929 205 6099
Webinar ID: 812 9999 0548

Global Presentation on 107 State Street 7:00 pm:
The City Council President Heather Shand called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm and asked the City Clerk, Richard B.
Jones, to call the roll. The following City Councillors answered present McCauley, Preston, Vogel, Wallace, Wright,

Zeid, Cameron, Donahue, Khan, Lane, and Shand. 11 present.

Jeffrey Roelofs, of the Law Offices of Jeffrey L. Roelofs, 44 Merrimac Street, Newburyport noted the presence of Global,
Inc. representatives Jaclyn Harrison, Corporate Communications & PR Manager and Ryan Lawlor, Director of Real
Estate. Attorney Roelofs gave an update of the progress being made in the near term, including that Global is actively in
talks with Exxon Mobile, the tanks should be removed in the next 4-6 weeks, a complete 21E filing is required, and all
safety standards will be followed.

After a period of discussion Council President Shand closed the meeting at 7:13 pm.

1. MOMENT OF SILENCE
Remembering Ted Norton
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. CALL TO ORDER
The City Council President Heather Shand called the meeting to order at 7:30 pm and asked the City Clerk,
Richard B. Jones, to call the roll. The following City Councillors answered present McCauley, Preston, VVogel,
Wallace, Wright, Zeid, Cameron, Donahue, Khan, Lane, and Shand. 11 present.
4. LATE FILE
e ORDRO00333_03_28 2022 CPC FY22 Supplementary Nock Tennis Restoration
e ORDRO00337_03_28 2022 Settlement High Street Paving 150K
e COMMO00400_03 28 2022 Ltr. Stephen Jean NY'S Presentation
e COMMO0401 03 28 2022 Ltrs. IFS Settlement
Motion to waive the rules and accept the late files by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor Lane. So voted.
5. PUBLIC COMMENT
Richard Yeager 19 Water St.
Stephen Jean 7 Lawton Dr.
Peter Mackin 13 Prospect St.
6. MAYOR'S COMMENT

CONSENT AGENDA

NOTE: ALL ITEMS LISTED UNDER CONSENT AGENDA WILL BE ENACTED BY ONE MOTION.
THERE WILL BE NO SEPARATE DISCUSSION OF THESE ITEMS. IF DISCUSSION IS DESIRED,
THAT ITEM WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA AND CONSIDERED
SEPARATELY.


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81299990548

7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

e March 14, 2022 (Approve)
8. COMMUNICATIONS

e COMMO00398 03 28 2022 Memo DHCD MBTA Housing Choice Briefing (P&D/COTW)

e COMMO00399 03 28 2022 FY23 Capital Improvement Plan and Budget Workshop Schedule (R&F)

e APPL00067_03 28 2022  Newburyport Lions Club Road Race 8/2/2022 (PS)

9. TRANSFERS

10. APPOINTMENTS

ALL ITEMS NOTED BELOW ARE REMOVED FROM THEIR RESPECTIVE COMMITTEES WITH THE
MOTION TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA

BUDGET & FINANCE
e TRANO00122_03 14 2022  Gen. Fund Free Cash $250K to Compensated Absences Reserve Fund $250K
e ORDRO00327_03 14 2022 Parklet Maintenance Fund
¢ ORDRO00328 03 14 2022 Parklet Maintenance Stabilization Fund Usage

LICENSE & PERMITS
e ORDRO00329 03 14 2022  List of Applicants for Parklet Use

NEIGHBORHOOD & CITY SERVICES
e ODNCO00106 _02 14 2022 *TABLED* CH2 COA Ordinance Amendment

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
e APPT00306 03 14 2022 Richard Yeager 19 Water St. #2  Planning Board 3/31/2027

PUBLIC SAFETY
e COMMO00397_03 14 2022 Laura Vlasuk Health Director

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

At the request of Councillor Khan the minutes are removed from the Consent Agenda.
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as amended by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor Preston.
So voted.

REGULAR AGENDA

9. PRESENTATION ON 59 LOW STREET SITE FEASIBILITY PLAN
Presentation was made by Kim Turner, Mayor’s Office Manager of Special Projects

10. MAYOR'S UPDATE
Motion to receive and file by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Donahue. So voted.

11. MINUTES 03_14 2022
Motion to approve the Minutes by Councillor Wright, seconded by Councillor Vogel. So voted (AK, BL
recused).



12. FIRST READING APPOINTMENTS

13. COMMUNICATIONS
o COMMO00400 03 28 2022 Late File Ltr Stephen Jean NYS Presentation

Motion to receive and file by Councillor Khan, seconded by Councillor Vogel. Roll call vote. 7 yes, 4 no (JM,
CW, SZ, BL). Motion passes.

e COMMO00401_03 28 2022 Late File Ltrs. IFS Settlement

Motion to receive and file by Councillor Vogel, seconded by Councillor Preston. Roll call vote. 7 no, 4 yes (CP,
BV, MW, EC). Motion fails.

Motion to refer to General Government by Councillor McCauley, seconded by Councillor Khan. So voted.
14. TRANSFERS

15. SECOND READING APPOINTMENTS
e APPT00304_03 14 2022 Heidi Newfell 10 Orange St. Cultural Council 3/31/2025
e APPT00307_03 14 2022 Sophie Korpics 26 Dove St. Comm. On Disabilities  3/31/2025

Motion to approve collectively by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor McCauley. Roll call vote. 11 yes.
Motion passes.

16. ORDERS
e ORDRO00330_03 28 2022 License Agreement between City and Friends of Plum Island Light
Motion to refer to Planning & Development by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor Cameron. So voted.
e ORDRO00331 03 28 2022 Loading Zone Green Street
Motion to refer to Public Safety by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor Cameron. So voted.
e ORDRO00316_01_10 2022 Amended City Council Rules 2022 (RECONSIDER PURUANT TO
COUNCIL RULE 14)
Motion to reconsider the motion to add Rule 20B by Councillor Vogel, seconded by Councillor Preston. Roll
call vote. 6 yes, 5 no (JM, CW, MW, SZ, BL). Motion passes.
Motion on the floor to add Rule 20B by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor McCauley.
Motion to move the question by Councillor Lane, seconded by Councillor McCauley. Roll call vote. 6 yes, 5
no (BV, Sz, JD, AK, HS). Motion passes.
Roll call on the motion to approve to add Rule 20B. 6 yes, 5 no (CP, BV, JD, AK, HS). Motion passes.
e ORDRO00332_03_28 2022 Authorizing the Settlement - IFS and Planning Board Appeal
Motion to refer ORDR00332 and ORDR00337 collectively to General Government by Councillor Zeid,
seconded by Councillor McCauley. So voted.
Motion to waive the rules to collectively remove ORDR00332 and ORDR00337 from General Government
and collectively refer back to General Government and the COTW by Councillor Zeid, seconded by
Councillor McCauley. So voted.
e ORDRO00333_03_28 2022 Late File CPC FY22 Supplementary Nock Tennis Restoration
e ORDRO00334 03 28 2022 ARPA Sea Wall Joppa Park 100K
e ORDRO00335 03 28 2022 ARPA 2.4K Streets Sidewalks
e ORDRO00336_03 28 2022 ARPA Amesbury 250K
Motion to refer ORDR00333, ORDR00334, ORDR00335, and ORDR00336 collectively to Budget & Finance by
Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor Cameron. So voted.
o ORDRO00337_03_28 2022 Late File Settlement High Street Paving 150K

Motion to refer to General Government collectively ORDR00332 and ORDR00337 by Councillor Zeid,
seconded by Councillor McCauley. So voted.

Motion to waive the rules to remove from General Government and collectively refer back to General
Government and the COTW ORDRO00337 by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor McCauley. So voted.



17. ORDINANCES
e (ODNCO098 10 12 2021 2" Reading Permanent Parklets Legislation
Motion to approve on second reading by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor Cameron. Roll call vote. 11
yes. Motion passes.
e ODNCO00107_02_28 2022 2" Reading 15 Minute Parking Spaces
Motion to approve on second reading by Councillor McCauley, seconded by Councillor Cameron. Roll call
vote. 10 yes, 1 no (SZ). Motion passes.
o ODNCO00108_02_28 2022 2" Reading City Council Meeting Start Time to 7 pm
Motion to approve on second reading by Councillor McCauley, seconded by Councillor Cameron. Roll call
vote. 9 yes, 2 no (SZ, BL). Motion passes.

18. COMMITTEE ITEMS

Ad Hoc Committee on Economic Development
In Committee:

Ad Hoc Committee on Market Landing Park and COTW
In Committee:
e ORDRO00326 03 14 2022 To Approve Sasaki Design Progress

Budget & Finance
In Committee:
e TRANO00122 03 14 2022 Gen. Fund Free Cash $250K to Comp. Absences Reserve Fund $250K
Motion to approve by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor McCauley. So voted.
e ORDRO00327 03 14 2022 Parklet Maintenance Fund
Motion to approve ORDR00327 and ORDR00328 collectively by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor
Khan. So voted.
e ORDRO00328 03 14 2022 Parklet Maintenance Stabilization Fund Usage
Motion to approve ORDR00327 and ORDR00328 collectively by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor
Khan. So voted.

Education
In Committee:

General Government
In Committee:
e ORDRO00319 02 14 2022 Kelley School Funds Order
e ORDRO00324 03 14 2022 Ad Hoc on Adaptive Reuse of Brown School

License & Permits
In Committee:
e ORDRO00329 03 14 2022  List of Applicants for Parklet Use
Motion to approve by Councillor Lane, seconded by Councillor McCauley. So voted.
e (ODNCO047_01 27 2020 General Ordinance - Short Term Rental Units Rules
e COMMO00385 01 31 2022 STRU Fire Sprinkler Systems
e COMMO00388 01 31 2022 UPDATED STRU Fire Sprinkler Systems

Neighborhoods & City Services
In Committee:
e ODNCO00106 02 14 2022 *TABLED* CH2 COA Ordinance Amendment
Motion to remove from the table by Councillor Wallace, seconded by Councillor Khan. So voted.
Motion to approve on first reading by Councillor Wallace, seconded by Councillor Khan. Roll call vote. 11
yes. Motion passes.




COMMZ299 02 08 2021 Phillips Dr. Neighborhood Committee Ltr

ODNC102_11 08 2021 Ch. 17 Stormwater Management Revisions

ODNCO00103 01_10 2022  Streets, Sidewalks, and Other Public Places Alterations & Maintenance
ODNCO00109 03 14 2022 Amendment to Sidewalks Specifying Sidewalk Materials

e COMMO00395_03 14 2022 St. & Sidewalk Repair Plan (COTW)

Planning & Development
In Committee:
e APPTO00306 03 14 2022 Richard Yeager 19 Water St. #2  Planning Board 3/31/2027
Motion to approve by Councillor Cameron, seconded by Councillor Preston. Roll call vote. 10 yes, 1 present
(SZ). Motion passes.
e (ODNCO046_01_27_2020 Zoning Amendment Short Term Rental Unit (STRU) (COTW)
e COMMO00382_01_31 2022 Update from Global re 107 State Street
e (ODNCO00105 02 14 2022 Zoning Amendment Business Park Uses
e APPT00305 03 14 2022 Dan Mello 2 B Fulton St.  Waterfront Trust 3/31/2027

Public Safety
In Committee:
e COMMO00397 03 14 2022 Laura Vlasuk Health Director
Motion to receive and file by Councillor McCauley, seconded by Councillor Zeid. So voted.
e COMMO00396_03 14 2022 Ltr. Stephen Comley
e COMMO00390_02_28 2022 Gregory Caplan Ltr-Low St./Bright Horizons access to Fuller Field

Public Utilities
In Committee:

Rules
In Committee:
e ORDR239 02 8 2021 Council Rule 7 and 10B

19. GOOD OF THE ORDER
Councillors Vogel, Lane, and Donahue spoke.

20. ADJOURNMENT
Motion to adjourn at 9:27 pm by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor Vogel. So Voted.



COMMUNICATIONS




COMMA402_04 11 2022

Newburyport City Council President
Heather Shand

60 Pleasant St

Newburyport, MA 01950

04 April 2022

Christopher and Renee Heath
12 Cushing Ave
Newburyport, MA 01950

President Shand and Members of the City Council:

| am writing this letter to ask for the assistance of the Council regarding a “Paper Street”
adjacent to my property at 12 Cushing Ave (lot 69-47 on the diagram) and my neighbor’s
property at 10 Cushing Ave (lot 69-49 on the diagram) (owner: Thomas & llene Grady). Several
months ago, | started correspondence with Councillor Christine Wallace of Ward 4 regarding
the process by which a homeowner/s could acquire this type of property. After meeting with
Councillor Wallace and Rich Jones, the City Clerk, it was suggested that we first determine
whether the property in question is owned or not by the City of Newburyport.

My wife and | are merely asking if the City of Newburyport could execute a title search to
determine ownership of the way on Cushing Ave. Once it is determined who the rightful owner
of the way is, we will then move forward or not with the Memorandum from the City Clerk’s
office following the Checklist for Disposition of Municipal Property. | have attached 2 photos to
provide a better idea of the area in question.

Please feel free to contact us at heathrc@msn.com or via cellphone at (503) 735-5470. Thank
you for your assistance with this inquiry.

Sincerely,

Christopher Heath

Christopher Heath
Renee Heath


mailto:heathrc@msn.com

COMMA402_04 11 2022



COMMA402_04 11 2022



APPLO0U68_04_11_2022


ksullivan
Typewritten Text
APPL00068_04_11_2022

















L MAPMYRUN

Flag Day 5K
Distance: 3.10 mi
Elevation Gain: 93 ft
Elevation Max: 100 ft

Notes

J
5o

Anna Jagues Hospital @
.
1‘.;; Newburyport
High School @

Wildwoad Dr

Pheasant Run Di

2,

a7 . o
e foy o 1 § Rlo, o5 A
(Google ¥ % {8 | Map data B2018 Google

ELEVATION (f1)
1
o T T T
0 1 2 3

Miles Cooynghl iz) 2018 MashiyF ltess Ing,






|
|

'YYY'VTTYYV""“I’

B, pobimy -l -

. This Centificate of Completion of
e eTIPS On Premise 3.1

-
o
e
D
-
>
>
-
-

-
>
-
e

work completed on March 30, 2022
8 Health Communications, Inc.

hereby granted to:

.' -

e .

| lrate of @nmpleln



Vendors Area 1:

* Newburyport Five Cents
S ETA L

* |nstitution for Savings

Vendors Area 2:
» Xfinity

5

3
ey
A

™, \ - L ; L
PN e Y. T .\
N T T A

B AG S, " | Imagery ©2015 Google, Map data ©2015 Google _ Terms







APPL00069_04_11_20:


ksullivan
Typewritten Text
APPL00069_04_11_2022





COMMO00403_04_11_2022

Crry OF NEWBURYPORT

FINANCE DEPARTMENT
60 PLEASANT STREET
NEWBURYPORT, MA 01950
PHONE: 978-465-4404
WWW.CITYOFNEWBURYPORT.COM/FINANCE

SEAN R. REARDON ETHAN R. MANNING
MAYOR FINANCE DIRECTOR/CITY AUDITOR
To: President and Members of the Newburyport City Council

From: Ethan R. Manning, Finance Director/City Auditor

Date: April 5, 2022

Subject: Annual Audit of the City’s FY2021 Financial Statements

The certified public accounting firm, Melanson, has completed the annual audit of the City’s
FY2021 financial statements. This audit must be performed by an independent CPA firm and is
required by bond rating agencies, financial institutions, local charter and various state and
federal agencies. The City’s financial statements, as well as, the Popular Annual Financial Report
(PAFR) can be located electronically in the “Financial Reports Center” section of the Finance
Department website at: https://www.cityofnewburyport.com/financials.

The FY2021 audit was conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States and standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. These standards
require that the audit is planned and performed in order to obtain a reasonable assurance that
the City’s financial statements are free of material misstatements. In addition, the audit
assesses the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by City management.

The scope of the audit is discussed in the independent auditor’s report, which prefaces the
financial statements. With respect to the FY2021 financial statements, it is the opinion of the
independent auditor that they “present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Newburyport, Massachusetts, as of June
30, 2021.”

1of3


http://www.cityofnewburyport.com/finance
https://www.cityofnewburyport.com/financials

The audit also includes a management report that contains recommendations for strengthening
internal controls and operating efficiency. Significant progress has been made by the City in
implementing the recommendations of the independent auditors. For FY2021, one prior year
recommendation was resolved and one new recommendation was added. Below is a summary
of the recommendations that appear in the FY2021 management letter:

1) Improve Compensated Absences Accounting (Prior Year)

The auditors recommend that the City centralize and automate the accounting for
employee compensated absences (i.e. vacation, sick time), which will increase the accuracy,
efficiency, and controls over the payment of compensated absences.

The City continues to review time and attendance platforms that would automate the
approval and tracking of employee compensated absences. Such platforms have been rolled
out departmentally, however the City is working to streamline into one platform that could
be used City-wide (with the exception of the schools).

Human Resources and Finance are currently working on testing a platform called
“EasyWorkforce” that has been used by DPS for tracking employees’ time and can integrate

with the City’s payroll system.

2) Improve Bank Account Reconciliations (Prior Year)

The auditors recommend that the City continue to address some lingering prior year
reconciling items despite the overall number of items and the time outstanding decreasing
over the past several years.

The Treasurer’s and Auditor’s offices have made strides in the current fiscal year to identify
and remove prior year adjustments from bank reconciliations and continue to meet
regularly to address issues. We are mindful of the need to simplify the process and have
streamlined bank accounts to scale down the lengthy process of reconciling accounts. We
have since implemented tailings processes and reconciling procedures into the City’s
Financial Policies.

3) Consider Improving Segregation of Human Resources and Payroll Duties (Prior Year)

In the prior year, the auditors recommended the City review control activities and related
monitoring activities to ensure that fundamental controls are implemented over payroll
processing.

Changes to departmental processes and reporting structure were made based on this
recommendation and the auditors consider this matter to be sufficiently resolved.

4) Reconcile and Maintain Investment Accounts at Fair Value (New)

20of3



With respect to the City’s trust funds, the auditors recommend that all investment accounts
are reported at fair value on both the accounting records (general ledger) and treasury
records (bank accounts). Currently, adjustments are required to reflect the fair value of
investments at year-end.

This recommendation is based on Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement
(GASB) No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. The City Treasurer is working with
the auditors and investment advisors to recognize, implement and monitor the investment
portfolio at fair value. Accounting and treasury will continue to coordinate on the regular
reconciliation of trust funds to avoid having to make adjustments at year-end to reflect any
differences.

5) Reconcile and Maintain Investment Accounts at Fair Value (Informational)

GASB has issued Statement No. 87, Leases, that will apply to the City’s FY2022 financial
statements; a change to the way certain leases are to be accounted for. The auditors
recommend that the City prepare to implement this new statement. The Finance
Department is aware of this statement and is working to ensure compliance with the new
guidance.

As always, please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.

30f3



APPL00070_04 11 20:


ksullivan
Typewritten Text
APPL00070_04_11_2022



































COMMO00404_04_11_2022

From: Mark R. Reich <MReich@k-plaw.com>

Sent: Thursday, March 31, 2022 1:30 PM

To: Heather Shand

Cc: Ethan Manning; Richard Jones; Sean Reardon

Subject: RE: MGL Ch 44, Sec 63 - Sale of real estate proceeds

Councilor —

As | understand the circumstances, the City Council approved ORDR074_08 29 16, which addressed
the disposition of the former Kelley School. The Ordinance included provisions of the transfer of the care,
custody, and control of the former school property from its then-current use to the purpose of disposition
by the Mayor. Please be aware that the provisions of G.L. c. 40, sec. 15A address the process for
transferring municipal property, and specify a two-thirds vote requirement for such transfer. It is my
understanding that this Ordinance was approved with the requisite two-thirds vote by the City Council.

As the City’s Chief Financial Officer points out in the below e-mail, the proceeds derived from sale of
municipal property are to be used in accordance with the provisions of G.L. c. 44, sec. 63. The intent of
ORDR319 02_14 2022 is to revise the allowable use of those sale proceeds. | have not been asked to
examine those uses in the context of G.L. c. 44, sec. 63, which | believe have been reviewed by the Chief
Financial Officer, but have been specifically asked if passage of ORDR319_02_14 2022 requires a two-
thirds vote of the City Council in the same manner as was required for passage of ORDR074_08_29 16.

In my opinion, the passage of ORDR074_08 29 16 was subject to the two-thirds vote requirement as the
Ordinance involved the transfer of property from one use to another, in accordance with the provisions of
G.L. c. 40, sec. 15A. The subsequent ORDR319_02_14 2022 does not address the issue of property
disposition and the transfer of interests, but instead deals with the use of proceeds obtained from the
disposition of the subject property. In my opinion, the transfer of property was appropriately addressed
through passage of ORDR074_08 29 16 by a two-thirds majority vote. In my further opinion,
ORDR319 02 14 2022, addressing and amending the use of proceeds, does not itself involve the
transfer of the subject property and so is subject to a simple majority vote requirement for passage.

| hope this discussion is helpful in resolving this issue. Please let me know if you have any further
questions or concerns.

Thank you.
Mark

Mark R. Reich, Esq.

KP | LAW

101 Arch Street, 12th Floor
Boston, MA 02110

0: (617) 556 0007
F: (617) 654 1735

mreich@k-plaw.com
www.k-plaw.com



mailto:MReich@k-plaw.com
tel:(617)%20556%200007
tel:(617)%20654%201735
mailto:mreich@k-plaw.com
http://www.k-plaw.com/

City of
Newburyport:
Strategic Plan

4/5/2022


ksullivan
Typewritten Text
COMM00405_04_11_2022


Mission and Key Objectives

Position Newburyport to continue thriving as a strong, vibrant community that is a
welcoming and desirable place for residents, businesses, and visitors.

Guide Future Lead in Building a
Development of the Collaborative and
City Engaged City

Secure and Invest in Provide High Quality
City’s Infrastructure Public Services




Secure and Invest in City’s Infrastructure

Invest in medium to
long-term capital
assets to meet City’s

Respond to
immediate needs
for critical City

Position the City’s assets
to reduce energy use
and mitigate risks of

Improve quality and
maintenance of
roadways and sidewalks

across the City

Increase funding to address the state of
streets and sidewalks and institute a
new planning and outreach cycle
through a five-year rolling plan.

Work with Traffic Safety Advisory
Committee to improve traffic issues
across City.

Together with state partners, find ways
to address the most dangerous
intersections.

Find opportunities for multimodal
transportation, with more access to
cycling and public transit.

infrastructure

Invest in the the long-term security of
our water infrastructure.

Identify funding for and begin repair of
Central Bulkhead.

Address key neighborhoods with failing
infrastructure, beginning with Phillips
Drive.

Work with the Parks Department and
Department of Public Services to meet
critical needs for Parks and for the
Highway and Waste Water Divisions.

needs

Create a Capital Facilities Plan that
catalogues all City needs.

Work with the Newburyport Public
Schools to understand their facility
needs.

Use the Capital Improvement Planning
process to identify funding for assets in
need of replacement.

Research opportunities for savings or
regionalization by comparing to
facilities plans of similar communities.

climate change

Integrate net-zero goals into all public
building construction and promote
incentives and consider for energy

efficient private buildings.

Use Green Communities Grants and
other sources to improve energy
efficiency of current buildings.

Begin planning for the upgrade of city
vehicles to energy efficient models.

Study and begin to implement

strategies for securing city assets from
effects of climate change.




Provide High Quality Public Services

Support the City’s
budget and capital
assets to provide
excellent public and
community services

Support Newburyport Youth
Services and help them find a
new home.

Continue to support
Newburyport Public Schools to
provide a first-rate educational

experience.

Work with the Department of

Public Services to improve the

year-round customer service
experience for residents.

Maintain a high level of service
and maintenance in parks and
find a new facility for the
Department’s headquarters.

Maintain the City’s
financial position

Creatively use available debt
sources and financial tools like
DIF to reduce liability.

Apply for and use all available
grant sources to reduce debt.

Look for ways to increase
government efficiency to keep
spending level.

Commit to making the City a
desirable employer to reduce
staff turnover and improve
hiring.

Maintain excellence
in Public Safety and
security services

Provide updated equipment and
facilities for the Fire Department,
including a new Fire Station 2
and renovated Headquarters.

Meet the needs of the Police
Department, including station
upgrades.

Support the Harbormaster’s
office and promote continued
State and Federal partnerships

for harbor safety.

Keep the City’s Information
Technology well-funded and
work to prevent against cyber-
attacks.

Look for ways to
serve more
vulnerable
populations

Advance the City’s Diversity,
Equity, and Inclusion initiatives
through hiring, contracting, and
convening abilities.

Grow the outreach and
programming offerings of the
Council on Aging to support the
city’s elderly population.

Find opportunities to support
mental health in the community
as we deal with the next stages

of the pandemic.

Use the Building and Health
Departments to ensure safety
standards are met for all.




Work with Planning
Department and others
to reach best outcomes

Promote Affordable
Housing and respond
to demand for housing

Protect open space and
promote sustainability

Achieve an effective
economic development

in major development
opportunities

Convene a fair process at
Waterfront West that leads to a
project that furthers the City’s goals
and responds to the residents’
interests.

Work with the City Council and the
community to find the best use for
the former Brown School.

Continue to look for high quality
projects in the Smart Growth
District.

Find other re-use opportunities for
large public and private sites.

locally

Follow and renew the Housing
Production Plan to stay above 40B
requirement of 10% affordable
housing.

Update zoning to allow for more
housing in priority areas and to
comply with state’s MBTA
Communities Policy.

Work with developers to have new
housing exceed the 12%
affordability requirement.

Look to make the best use of city-
owned land that could be used for
new housing.

strategy in the city

Create an economic development
master plan.

Look for workforce development
opportunities to create more high-
quality jobs of all skill levels for
Newburyport residents.

Support local small businesses

through targeted initiatives and

strategic partnerships with the
Chamber of Commerce and others.

Look for ways to further the City’s
identity as a historic, environmental,
and arts and culture hub to drive
tourism and increased visits to the
city.

efforts

Preserve open space and
conservation areas in priority sites.

Work with the Resiliency Committee
to plan for future sea level rise and
protect City assets.

Protect the waterfront by investing
in the bulkhead, docks, and long-
term sea level rise mitigation.

Work with the Harbormaster, DPS,
US Army Corps of Engineers and
others to mitigate Plum Island
erosion through jetty adjustments
and dredging.




Lead in Building a Collaborative and Engaged City

Provide transparent
communication on

City functions to
residents

Improve the City website so it is
engaging and easy to maintain.

Use social media, email lists, and
other technology effectively to
reach audiences where they are.

Work with partners like
Newburyport Community Media to
provide new ways of presenting
informationto engage more deeply
on important topics.

Continue to meet all public records
and open meeting law requirements
and practices, including in the
offering of hybrid and virtual public
meetings.

Engage more
residents in local
government

Fil the City’s Boards and
Commissions and look for
opportunities to bring in new
volunteers.

Educate residents on the role and
activities of our Boards and
Commissions.

Increase the visibility of the City
Council’s activity and agendas, and
make more people aware of how to

get involved.

Increase the number of residents
voting in municipal elections.

Find new
opportunities for
resident feedback

and build it into City

processes

Hold Office Hours every month to
engage with residents.

Use new tools, including surveys and
other options to receive resident
feedback on City actions.

Hold public charrettes around large
projects in non-traditional formats
to reach more residents.

Work with youth and other groups
that are not typically engaged by
government.

Make City Hall more

accessible

Look for opportunities to bring more
processes and government
functions online and easier to
complete.

Hold more events and activities
outside of City Hall to meet the
community in different
environments.

Complete an audit of building
technology and physical appearance
to consider the visitor experience.

Convene non-profit partners to find
ways to work together on key
issues.




Five Strategic Priorities: Year 1

Streets and Waterfront
Sidewalks West

Capital

Affordable

Facilities .
Housing

Planning

Resiliency and
Sustainability




TRANSFERS




TRAN00123_04_11_20:


ksullivan
Typewritten Text
TRAN00123_04_11_2022


Newburyport Fire Department
Office of the Fire Chief

To: Mayor Reardon & the Newburyport City Council
From: Chief Christopher J. LeClaire

Date: April 5,2022

Re: First Due Software/Related Hardware

The Newburyport Fire Department’s data collection and generation program is hindered by
the lack of 215t Century technology both in our apparatus and in our fire stations. We need to
update our data collection systems so that we can improve pre-fire planning, hazard
recognition and emergency response to the varied properties within our community. We
currently have no way of accessing property GPS data, building plans, hazardous materials
information and special information unless it is accessed by dispatch. Even there, our abilities
are limited.

The FD has been researching software to assist us with day-to-day operations, emergency
response, pre-planning, inspections and reports, scheduling and training. The firefighters
assigned to this project have identified a program known as First Due. This program is
specifically designed for fire department operations and is used in many departments
throughout Massachusetts, including: Peabody, Salem, Danvers, Saugus, Salisbury, Gloucester,
Groveland, Georgetown, Reading, North Reading, Nahant, Haverhill, Lynn, Belmont, Arlington,
Weymouth, Shrewsbury and Westborough. Other communities, such as Amesbury,
Foxborough, Mansfield, Easton, Norton and Worcester are in the enrollment process.

The First Due software will allow us to have better response plans and response tactics due to
immediate access to building and occupancy related data. The software allows for easy access
to vital information regarding building use, hazardous materials/processes contained therein.

This software will allow us to:

e Have instant access to critical structure and occupant data at the time of response
e Pre-plan hazardous occupancies
e Update and have access to inspection records

e Track and report on fire/EMS training hours and continuing education credits


https://www.firstdue.com/

Track and report fire prevention activity, including: inspections, permits, investigations,
violations, etc.

Track inventory
Track apparatus and equipment maintenance records; provides work order system

Provide access to the National Fire Incident Reporting System (NFIRS) to meet
mandatory reporting requirements

Schedule and manage personnel hours and staffing levels
Receive real-time alerts for emergency incidents in our city and area

Provide community access to the FD through the Community Connect program, which
allows residents and business owners to interact with us through the program

Have interoperability with neighboring departments utilizing the same software

Access mapping and hydrant locations through GPS

This software is accessed through tablets (in the apparatus) and desktop computers (in the
stations). The initial expense will be the initial partial-year agreement, the purchase of five (5)
iPads with mounting hardware and monthly data plans and two (2) desktop computers. As
shown on the attached cost summary, this initial investment is approximately $8,100 for FY22.
For FY23 and beyond, the estimated annual cost is $22,200, which includes an annual
subscription fee of $20,400 plus $1,800 for the five (5) monthly data plans through the City’s
existing wireless contract.

Thank you for your consideration.



Fire Response Technology

Cost Summary

Equipment Qty Cost Total

iPads 5 S 800.00 S 4,000.00
Desktop PCs/monitors 2 S 1,000.00 S 2,000.00
Mounting hardware 5 § 500.00 $ 2,500.00
Total Equipment S 6,000.00
Data Plan for iPads 5 § 360.00 $ 1,800.00
Start-up cost S 1,650.00
Annual Fee S 20,400.00
FY22 Funding Need

Equipment S 6,000.00
Data Plan for 3 months S 450.00
Start-up cost S 1,650.00
Total FY22 S 8,100.00
FY23 Funding Need

Data Plan for iPads S 1,800.00
Annual Fee S 20,400.00
Total FY23 $ 22,200.00

Total FY22 + FY23

$ 30,300.00




TRAN00124_04_11_20:


ksullivan
Typewritten Text
TRAN00124_04_11_2022


CITY OF NEWBURYPORT
OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SEAN R. REARDON, MAYOR

To: President and Members of the City Council

From: Mayor Sean R. Reardon

Date: April 5, 2022

Subject: Transfer for 59 Low Street and Brown School Cost Estimates

My administration is moving forward with the selection of a site and early formation of a plan
for Newburyport Youth Services. We have been proceeding in accordance with the Council’s
January 31, 2022 order, which authorized the purchase of 59 Low Street. That order asked for
the City Engineer to complete an engineering site plan for the property to guide future
decisions on the final use of the property. It also stated that a plan and associated costs are
needed for the Brown School and that there may be public value in restoring the gym for use.

As discussed at the most recent City Council meeting, our engineering staff has completed an
engineering site plan for 59 Low Street to determine whether that property could fit a Youth
Services facility consisting of administrative offices, programming space, and a modular gym.
The site plan showed that the components could be arranged to fit on-site within the
parameters of wetland restrictions and parking requirements. The presentation to the Council
discussed that the next step was to select an architect to create an architectural plan and
estimate for re-use of the existing building for NYS, including a modular gym. This would lead to
a phased plan with associated costs for the site. At the same time, we would request a review
of a Parks Facility location and cost estimates for the Brown School.

At this time, | am requesting a transfer of funds to pay for an architectural consultant. My office
obtained three quotes from local architects, with a scope of services to include a preliminary
code analysis, HVAC engineering analysis, conceptual architectural design and associated costs
for gut renovating the 59 Low St building and adding a modular gym. The consultant will also
include a schematic design for the Brown School gymnasium as both: 1. a standalone public
asset as well as, 2. a satellite property for NYS with limited admin space, so we can better
understand the costs associated with either option. We are recommending proceeding with
EGA Architects, who can complete the work for $30,000.

This work will help answer many questions about detailed feasibility, as well as, associated
costs for this project. We are asking that these funds be transferred from the proceeds of the
sale of the Kelley School. From the $30,000 request, roughly $7,000 is for the Brown School and
$23,000 is for 59 Low Street. We feel this is an appropriate use of these funds, as the
information obtained will be critical in moving both projects forward and determining the best
use of the reminder of the Kelley School funds.



The funds requested for the schematic design and cost estimates at the Brown School follows
two other significant studies already completed by Winter Street Architects and studioMLA
Architects. Those studies were completed as part of early feasibility analyses that looked at
whether the building could fit all NYS activities, as well as, to evaluate the building’s suitability
for uses such as artists studios, senior living apartments, and other community uses, including
NYS. The most recent analysis by studioMLA estimated the costs of converting the entire first
floor to NYS space. We are looking for a narrower scope that will give us a schematic design and
an updated idea of costs for the gym as a satellite space rather than a headquarters. NYS will no
longer be on the first floor of the Brown School, which changes the cost estimates. This
updated information is crucial for deciding how to move forward on the NYS headquarters and
the suitability of the Brown School gym as a community facility, including potentially for NYS.

We appreciate the Council’s consideration of this work and look forward to the completion of
the budget transfer, which will unlock the next steps for the NYS site selection.



April 4th, 2022

Kim D Turner

Manager of Special Projects
City of Newburyport

60 Pleasant Street
Newburyport, MA 01950

Re: City of Newburyport — 59 Low Street Youth Services
Dear Kim,

Thank you for considering us and please find attached our proposal for the Newburyport
Youth Services Center at 59 Low Street. It is our understanding that you would like us to
provide schematic design services for the proposed building as well as for a Brown School
option.

Our services will include a preliminary code analysis and schematic design plans based
upon the site plan option A we discussed the other day (see attached). The fee also
includes MEP and structural narratives to describe alternatives for the proposed design.
The proposed fee for these services is $30,000. We have attached additional information
on the following pages that describe the full scope of services in greater detail.

If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to call me at 978-500-3738.
We thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal and we look forward to working

with you on this exciting project.

Sincerely,

Scott Hall, Principal
Registered Architect, P.E.
EGA Architects, P.C.

Cc: Scott Hall, Katie Flaherty



SCOPE OF SERVICES

* Included Services
The base design services shall include the following:

o

0]
0]
0]

Preliminary Code Analysis

Schematic plans based upon Option A site plan (see attached).

Options for Brown School Alternative noted below

Schematic design shall include MEP and structural narratives of options

e Schematic Design

o

(0]

(0]

Review of historical info on the project site, including reports on
environmental contaminants, and review of program needs of the
department

A concept design for the (gut) renovation of the existing structure at 59
Low St, maintaining its shell, and adding a modular gym and possible
administrative space (max 1000 sf)

Selection of a preferred concept design and development of site plan,
elevations, floor plans, and perspectives

Cost estimation for construction of the above, including an OPM, testing,
and contingencies

Associated meetings including 2-3 with City Staff and 1-2 public meetings
A conceptual design of an alternative scenario that utilizes gym/locker
room/bathroom space at the Brown School (Milk St) both with and
without associated administrative space for NYS (plus associated costs)
Preliminary structural review and schematic design options in narrative
form

Preliminary MEP review and schematic design options in narrative form

ASSUMPTIONS

* The proposed fee includes 2-3 meetings with city staff and 1-2 public meetings.

* The proposed fee does not include any work by Civil, Structural, MEP or Interior
Design consultants for this package (These can be added if needed)

e Cost estimate shall be prepared by PM&C. We have included their fee in our
proposal.



REIMBURSABLES
* Reimbursable expenses such as travel, printing and postage shall be billed on a
monthly basis in accordance with Schedule A attached.
ADDITIONAL SERVICES
e Additional services, if needed, shall be performed on an hourly basis in accordance
with Schedule A attached. EGA shall receive written approval from the Owner
prior to performing any additional services.
* The contract for the project shall be the AIA Document B101 — 2017 edition.

INVOICES

* EGA shall invoice on the first of each month for all work completed in the prior
month.

AGREEMENT

If you are in agreement with this proposal, please indicate by signing below and returning
one copy of this document to our office.

Sincerely,

Scott Hall, President
Registered Architect, P.E.
EGA Architects, P.C.

Agreed to:

Kim D Turner, Manager of Special Projects Date



SCHEDULE A

SCHEDULE OF HOURLY RATES

CLASSIFICATION HOURLY
RATES

CEO/President $ 220.00
Officer 183.00
Senior Project Manager 150.00
Project Manager 135.00
Project Architect/Designer 125.00
Intern Architect 110.00
Architectural Drafter 92.00
Graphic Design 90.00
Executive Administration 73.00
Clerical 61.00

1of 2



SCHEDULE A
REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES

Long distance communications, express delivery services, travel and
subsistence associated with travel, copies and reproductions, will be expensed
as follows:

ITEM EXPENSED
RATE
Travel/Meals/Lodging Cost
Mileage (IRS Allowed) IRS Rate
Black and White Copies/Prints (8 2 x
11 and 8 2 x 14) $.10/copy
Long Distance Telephone $.05/minute
In House Printing:
Color Copies/Prints (8 72 x 11 and 8 2 x $.70/copy
14)
Black and White Copies/Prints (11 x 17) $.30/copy
Color Prints and Copies (11 x 17) $1.78/copy
Large Format Color Plots $.75/ sq. ft.
Large Format Copies (per plot):
24" x 18" $2.83/plot
24" x 36" $3.50/plot
30" x 42" $4.38/plot
36" x 48" $5.00/plot
Other sizes will be billed at $0.50 per sq. ft.

*In the event printing needs to be sent out of the office (due to time and/or volume limitations,
etc.) the Architect will invoice the vendor’s cost of the printing.

20of 2



Partnering for quality results

March 12, 2022

Scott Hall, Registered Architect, P.E.

CFO

EGA, P.C.

One Vernon Street

Newburyport, MA 01950

Re: Youth Center, Newburyport, MA

Dear Scott,

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal for the youth center project.

We understand that the project involves the renovation of an existing 5,800 SF building with a new 4,150 SF gym addition
and a new 1,000 GSF administration wing addition.

Our fee for cost estimating services is as follows:

SD Estimate: $4,500

Thank you again for asking PM&C to submit a proposal on this project.

If this proposal is agreeable, please sign and send back to this office.

Sincerely, Accepted By:

Peter Bradley BSC Q.S.; LEED AP
President

Name Date

20 DOWNER AVENUE; SUITE 5. HINGHAM, MA 02043 ¢ 781.740.8007 «+ WWW.PMC-MA.COM




B2 Wd ST

AR ppa

lu:401
O™ of Neld@puper

802



APPOINTMENTS
FIRST READING




APPT00308_04 11 20


ksullivan
Typewritten Text
APPT00308_04_11_2022

ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text














APPT00309 04 11 20


ksullivan
Typewritten Text
APPT00309_04_11_2022

ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text








APPT00310_04 11 20


ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text
APPT00310_04_11_2022

ksullivan
Typewritten Text











APPT00311 04 11 20


ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text
APPT00311_04_11_2022

ksullivan
Typewritten Text











APPT00312_04 11 20


ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text
APPT00312_04_11_2022

ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text











END OF CONSENT AGENDA

BEGINNING OF REGULAR AGENDA



ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text


COMMUNICATIONS




COMMO00406_04 11 _20.
LateFile

Pioneer League Board of Directors

447 Merrimac St, Newburyport, MA 01950
Contact Info?

4th April 2022

Richard Burke Jones

City Clerk, City of Newburyport
60 Pleasant St
Newburyport, MA 01950

Dear Mr. Jones,

In early December 2011 it was brought to our attention that the Committee on Budget & Finance
reviewed Order 311, which sought the acceptance of $110,000.00 in funding from the Mayor
Gayden W. Morrill Charitable Foundation. This gift included $40,000.00 for the development of
three pickleball courts in Lower Atkinson Common.

We addressed the way these funds for pickleball were forced into Lower Atkinson without
consent or input from the Pioneer League to the council in December. Thanks to the intervention
of the council, a public process was put in place. Our communication on overcrowding,
consideration of time or money invested into the park, the consent of neighbors, and public
process regrettably resulted in no material change.

The public process of the parks commission has ignored input by the community and is moving
forward with the same multi-use idea we started out with in Dec. There is no point to a public
process where the public is ignored. No alternatives seem to have been considered for the grant
money. Review of these meetings clearly indicate there is no consent for this plan. All protests
from neighbors, families, and the league have apparently been dismissed.

The parks commission does not appear to be listening and we ask the council to intervene
immediately and reject any plan approved for pickleball and review the park commission's
decision to move forward without the consent of the residents and the thousands of people who

already use this park.

Sincerely,

Pioneer League Board of Directors


ksullivan
Typewritten Text
COMM00406_04_11_2022
		Late File


ORDERS




ORDR 00338_04_11_2022

CITY OF NEWBURYPORT

IN CITY COUNCIL

ORDERED:

April 11, 2022

THAT, the City Council of the City of Newburyport adopts the FY2023-2027 Capital Improvement
Program, as submitted by Mayor Reardon on March 31, 2022 and amended by the City Council.

Councillor Sharif I. Zeid



CITY OF NEWBURYPORT
OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SEAN R. REARDON, MAYOR

To: President and Members of the City Council
From: Mayor Sean R. Reardon

Date: March 31, 2022

Subject: FY23-27 Capital Improvement Program

In accordance with Section 6-5 of the Charter, which requires the submission of a capital
improvement plan to the City Council by April 1 of each year, | am pleased to submit an
updated Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for Fiscal Years 2023 through 2027.

The CIP can be viewed at: https://www.cityofhewburyport.com/fy23-27cip

This year’s CIP continues the good practice from the previous administration of incorporating
the capital needs of all City Departments with a practical funding plan for each year of the
program. The Mayor’s Office and the Finance Director worked with Department Heads to
identify, update, and refine their capital needs for FY2023 through FY2027. There has been
considerable discussion about how best to accomplish the City’s capital goals while remaining
mindful of limited financial resources and fiscal policies.

The Mayor’s office also used this opportunity to further refine my strategic plan, which
highlights the key objectives and strategic priorities of my administration. We will discuss this
plan further in the coming weeks, but it consists of four principal objectives, which are 1)
Secure and invest in the City’s infrastructure; 2) Provide high quality public services; 3) Guide
the future development of the City; and 4) Lead in building a collaborative and engaged city.
The Mayor’s office made sure that all projects recommended for approval fit within the
strategic plan and would keep the City in excellent fiscal condition.

| extend my sincere appreciation to the department heads, staff, and everyone else who has
put time into this document so that we can better plan for the future of our capital assets. We
will continue finding ways to be more strategic in this process, and with the addition of our
Capital Facilities Plan and Strategic Plan, we will have a wider lens on what needs to be
accomplished to set the City on the right course.

| urge all members of the public to review the plan, and | look forward to working with you
through the public hearing and adoption process as specified in the Charter.

Thank you for your consideration.


https://www.cityofnewburyport.com/fy23-27cip

ORDR00339_04 11 2022

CITY OF NEWBURYPORT

IN CITY COUNCIL

ORDERED:

April 11, 2022

AN ORDER TO AUTHORIZE THE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY AND
NORTH OF BOSTON MEDIA GROUP RELATING TO THE MANAGEMENT OF A
PARKING LOT

Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Newburyport as follows:

THAT the City Council of the City of Newburyport hereby approves the terms and conditions
contained in the attachment “A” with respect to the parking lot located at 23 Liberty Street,
Newburyport containing more or less 23 parking spaces.

FURTHER the City Council authorizes the Parking Clerk to negotiate the final written contract
containing substantially the aforementioned terms and conditions and authorizes the Mayor to
execute this same contract.

Councillor James J. McCauley

Page 1



“A”

Proposal for the Lease of the Daily News Lot

Date: April 4, 2022

To: Bob Reneson, Operations Director, North of Boston Media Group.

From: Richard B. Jones, Parking Clerk, City of Newburyport
KEAEAKRAAKRAAXAAAXAAAAAAXAAAAIAAAIAAAAAAAAAAAAAAhAhrAhAhhhhhkhhhhrhhhhhhrhhrihhhkihiiihiiiiikx
The City of Newburyport (“City”) by and through its Parking Department proposes to lease the
parking lot from North of Boston Media Group (“Daily News”) located at 23 Liberty Street,
Newburyport containing more or less 25 parking spaces and operate the same as a parking lot
within its existing system.

Term: Two (2) years with Two (2) year possible renewal

Condition: Thirty (30) day unilateral notice of termination

Snow removal: City provides snow removal

Maintenance: City will clean and maintain the lot

Consideration: City will pay to the Daily News the amount of $3,000/mo

Enforcement: City will monitor lot with parking officers on foot patrol and LPR vehicle.

Kiosk: City will install one Solar-powered Kiosk

Collection: City will provide timely collection from the Kiosk

Signage: City will install necessary signage on and about lot.

Methods of Payment: City will offer the following methods of payment: cash/credit card/pay-by-
phone.

Insurance: City will provide certificate of insurance

Daily News Spaces: City will provide digital permits per license plate for up to thirteen (13)
employees’ vehicle and set aside three marked parking spaces for Daily News employees. Of the
13 people, 8 are in the lot most days, the others work from home and rarely come to the

office. During the daytime hours there would be the most overlap. Below is a snapshot of a
typical day.

2 Circulation (delivery) 4am and leave before 10am
2 Reporters 8am-5pm

1 Reporter 2pm-Midnight

1 Editor (Lisa) 10am-7pm

2 Advertising Sales 8am - 5pm

Most are in and out all day depending on what they are reporting or selling. Also, the News
doesn’t publish on Tuesdays and Saturdays so Mondays and Fridays the lot should be pretty
empty, with the exception of the delivery folks early in the morning.

There will be curtesy digital permits given to the G.M, Publisher, Maintenance, Director of
Operations.

Subject to: Contract needs to be approved by City Council
Page 2 of 2

ORDR00339_04_11_2022 Authorizing Agreement between City and Daily News re Lot



ORDR00340_04_11_2022

CITY OF NEWBURYPORT

IN CITY COUNCIL

ORDERED:

April 11, 2022

Newburyport City Council Resolution in Support of the Fair Share Amendment

WHEREAS, the best way to help working families and build a strong economy for all is to make
sure that we have quality public schools for our children, affordable public higher education, and
a reliable transportation system; and

WHEREAS, as we recover from the pandemic and in the future, new state revenue is necessary
to improve our public schools and pre-K programs; rebuild crumbling roads, bridges, sidewalks,
and bike paths; make high-quality public higher education affordable; and invest in fast and
reliable public transportation; and

WHEREAS, student mental health concerns are on the rise, requiring schools to expend more
resources ensuring the well-being of all students; and

WHEREAS, the numbers of students receiving special education services is growing, requiring
schools to expend more resources ensuring all children can access the curriculum; and

WHEREAS, major investments in public education are needed to help students recover
academically, socially, and emotionally from the COVID-19 pandemic; and

WHEREAS, tuitions and fees at our public colleges are among the highest in the country,
forcing students to take on enormous debt just to receive a degree; and

WHEREAS, the City of Newburyport’s Capital Improvement Program projects $16,405,947 in
capital expenditures for schools over the next five years; and

WHEREAS, the disrepair of Newburyport's streets and sidewalk is of concern to our residents
and the City of Newburyport’s Capital Improvement Program projects $14,309,000 in capital
expenditures for road and sidewalk repairs over the next five years; and

WHEREAS, the Massachusetts Department of Revenue estimated in 2019 that the tax increase
would generate $1.9 billion of new revenue and affect just half of one percent of all filers; and

WHEREAS, in June 2021, with a vote of 159 in favor to 41 opposed, the Legislature’s
Constitutional Convention voted to place the Fair Share Amendment on the November 2022
statewide ballot, where it is now set to be decided on by the voters; and



ORDR00340_04_11_2022

THEREFORE, be resolved that the Newburyport City Council supports the proposed Fair Share
Amendment that would create an additional tax of four percentage points on annual income
above one million dollars and dedicate the funds raised by this tax to quality public education,
affordable public colleges and universities, and for the repair and maintenance of roads,
bridges, and public transportation.

Respectfully submitted,

Councillor Edward C. Cameron Jr.

Councillor Jennie L. Donahue



ORDRO00341 04 11 2022
Late File

CITY OF NEWBURYPORT

IN CITY COUNCIL

ORDERED:

April 11, 2022

WHEREAS, a photovoltaic solar electric generating facility has been proposed by a Developer, BWC
Artichoke Reservoir, LLC, to be constructed on privately-owned property consisting of approximately
6.75 acres of land located at 36 Colby Farm Lane, Newburyport, MA, 01950, as more particularly shown
on Assessor's Map 99, Lot 3, and more commonly known as the “Landfill”;

WHEREAS, clause 45 of M.G.L. c. 59, § 5, as affected by Sections 61 and 63 of Chapter 8 of 2021 (“An Act
Creating a Next-Generation Roadmap for Massachusetts Climate Policy”), allows cities and towns to
enter into an agreement for payments in lieu of taxes (PILOT) with the owner of a solar or wind powered
system or energy storage system, or a combination of the same;

WHEREAS, it may be in the best interests of the City and the Developer to enter into an agreement
fixing the payments that will be made with respect to all taxable property incorporated within the
project for the term of the agreement; and

WHEREAS, if a PILOT agreement is desired, the municipality is required to act through “its authorized
officer,” which is one given authority by the municipality’s legislative body to negotiate the PILOT
agreement, to include the chief executive officer (CEQ) of the municipality (selectboard, mayor or
manager), or some other combination of municipal officer or officers;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDERED, THAT, the City Council of the City of Newburyport hereby authorizes
the Mayor, acting with the Assessor, Finance Director and Sustainability Director, to negotiate a PILOT
agreement with BWC Artichoke Reservoir, LLC, subject to further approval by the City Council prior to
executing said agreement.

Councillor James J. McCauley



ORDRO00342 04 11 2022
Late File

CITY OF NEWBURYPORT

IN CITY COUNCIL

ORDERED:

April 11, 2022

That the City Council appropriate from the Community Preservation Act Community Preservation Fund Balance, in
accordance with the provisions of M.G.L. Chapter 44B, additional funding for the following FY2020 project, based
upon the Community Preservation Committee’s recommendation. The source of funds shall be the Community

Preservation Fund Balance. Said appropriation shall be considered a separate appropriation or reservation in the
amount indicated [below]:

Pr;:)e ct Project Title Applicant Request Recommendation
Bartlet Mall Historic Newburyport Parks Department &
5 Restoration-Walkway P P . $51,000 $51,000
Newburyport Parks Commission
Improvements

Councillor Sharif I. Zeid



ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text


NEWBURYPORT COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE
Supplemental Recommendation for FY20 Appropriations
(Bartlet Mall Historic Restoration — Walkway Improvements)

The Newburyport Community Preservation Committee recommends that the City Council appropriate
from the Community Preservation Fund Balance additional funding for the following listed FY20
project(s):

e FY2020: Project 5: Bartlet Mall Historic Restoration — Walkway Improvements
This supplemental funding is subject to the terms and conditions set forth the in the 2019 signed Grant
Agreement. Applications for all projects are available for review in the Office of Planning &
Development.

Respectfully submitted by:

Community Preservation Committee Members

Michael Dissette, Chair Jane Healey, Vice Chair
Mark Rosen Paul Healy

Tom O’Brien Don Walters

Don Little Joe Morgan

Charles Griffin

PROJECT NO. 5
Bartlet Mall Historic Restoration — Walkway Improvements

The CPC recommends the appropriation of an additional $51,000 from the Community Preservation
Fund Balance to the Newburyport Parks Department and Newburyport Parks Commission for the Bartlet
Mall Historic Restoration — Walkway Improvements Project.

The CPA category for this appropriation is Historic Preservation.

Project Summary:

The Newburyport Parks Department and Newburyport Parks Commission have submitted a
supplemental funding application for the Bartlet Mall Historic Restoration — Walkway Improvements
Project to fund the balance needed for a contract to replace the Bartlet Mall walkway that stretches
along Pond Street from Greenleaf Street to High Street. The original budget estimate, which was funded
by CPCin 2020, was $83,000. This estimate was based on a portion of the work being performed in-
house. The Parks Department reports that the ability to perform this work in-house is no longer
feasible, and contractor costs have risen resulting in higher overall project cost. The Parks Department
recently completed a sealed bid for this project. The lowest bidder offered $121,658.42, leaving an
unfunded difference of $38,658.42. The Parks Department has added a 10% project contingency of
$12,165.84 to the project budget giving the Parks Department a total balance needed of just under
$51,000.



The CPC voted at the meeting of 4/7/22 to recommend the appropriation of an additional $51,000 from
the Community Preservation Fund Balance.





ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text
































ORDINANCES




ODNC00106_02_14 2022
2" Reading

CITY OF NEWBURYPORT

IN CITY COUNCIL

ORDERED:

Introduced February 14, 2022

ORDERED:
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL TO UPDATE MEMBERSHIP REQUIREMENTS AND TERM DURATION
FOR THE NEWBURYPORT COUNCIL ON AGING

Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Newburyport as follows:

THAT the Code of Ordinances, City of Newburyport, Massachusetts, is hereby amended for Chapter 2 —
Administration, Article lll — Boards, Committees and Commissions, Division 2. Council on Aging as
follows for the specific sections noted here; 2-81 — Establishment; membership, Section 2-82 — Terms of
appointees, and Section 2-85 — Coordinating, Carrying Out Programs. These amendments are to read as
follows, with deletions double-stricken-through and italicized, and additions double-underlined and
italicized:

CHAPTER 2 - ADMINISTRATION
ARTICLE IIl. - BOARDS, COMMITTEES, COMMISSIONS
DIVISION 2.- COUNCIL ON AGING

Sec. 2-81. Establishment; membership.

There is hereby established a council on aging consisting of an eleven (11) member board, a
majority of which must be a least sixty (60) years of age. Members must be residents and-registered
yeters-of the city. Members shall be appointed by the mayor, subject to she-esnsent-approval efby the
city council. All members currently serving on the board shall remain, subject to terms designated by the
mayor in section 2-82.



ODNCO00106 02 14 2022
2" Reading

Sec. 2-82. Terms of appointees.

a term of %three (35) years. Terms shall expire on the last day of May. No member may serve for
more than three (3) consecutive terms. A-mers o “

Sec. 2-85. Coordinating, carrying out programs.

It shall be the duty of the council on aging to coordinate or carry out programs designed to meet
problems of the aging in coordination with programs of the council on aging established under M.G.L. c.
406, § 8B#3.

Councillor Afroz K. Khan

In City Council February 14, 2022:
Motion to refer to Neighborhood and City Services by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor Lane.
So voted

In City Council March 14, 2022:
Motion to Table by Councillor Wallace, seconded by Councillor Zeid. So voted.

In City Council March 28, 2022:

Motion to remove from the table by Councillor Wallace, seconded by Councillor Khan. So
voted.

Motion to approve on first reading by Councillor Wallace, seconded by Councillor Khan. Roll
call vote. 11 yes. Motion passes.



COMMITTEE ITEMS




Committee Items-April 11, 2022

Ad Hoc Committee on Market Landing Park
and COTW

Ad Hoc Committee on Market Landing Park and COTW
In Committee:

e ORDRO00326 03 14 2022 To Approve Sasaki Design Progress



ORDR00326_03_14 2022

CITY OF NEWBURYPORT

IN CITY COUNCIL

ORDERED:

AN ORDER APPROVING CONTINUED DESIGN WORK FOR THE MARKET LANDING PARK
EXPANSION PROJECT VISITOR CENTER/BATHROOM FACILITY

WHEREAS, Order 296 (ORDR296_10_25 2021) included the appropriation of funds for final
design of a Visitor Center/Bathroom Facility as part of the Market Landing Park Expansion
project; and

WHEREAS, said Order requires that the designer (Sasaki) return to the City Council for
authorization to proceed beyond 25% schematic design deliverables to the remaining seventy-
five percent (75%) and one hundred percent (100%) design submissions, in accordance with
Sasaki’s existing contract (Scope of Work Task 7); and

WHEREAS, Sasaki has provided the Council (and its Ad Hoc Committee on Market Landing Park
Expansion), an update regarding the progress of said 25% schematic design, and the Council has
in turn provided guidance relative to several key design factors integral to the design of this
facility; and

WHEREAS, Sasaki has received this guidance from the Council (and its Ad Hoc Committee on
Market Landing Park Expansion), with a directive to make applicable changes to the project
plans; and

WHEREAS, continued delay to the progress of facility design, and associated park design in
relation to this facility, may result in increased cost to the City, and adverse impact to the
schedule for deliverable of “shovel ready” construction plans later this year;

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council hereby authorizes Sasaki to proceed to the remaining
seventy-five percent (75%) design and one hundred percent (100%) design submissions (Sasaski
Contract Task 7), pursuant to said Order 296.

Councillor Heather L. Shand

Page 1



ORDR00326_03_14 2022

In City Council March 14, 2022:
Motion to refer to Ad Hoc Committee on Market Landing Park by Councillor McCauley, seconded by
Councillor Vogel. So voted.

Page 2









Committee Items-April 11, 2022
Budget & Finance

Budget & Finance
In Committee:

e ORDRO00333 03 28 2022 CPC FY22 Supplementary Nock Tennis Restoration (Amended)
e ORDRO00335_03 28 2022 ARPA 2.4K Streets Sidewalks



ORDERED:

ORDRO00333_03_28 2022
Amended 03 31 2022

CITY OF NEWBURYPORT

IN CITY COUNCIL

March 28, 2022

That the City Council appropriate from the Community Preservation Act FY2022 Community
Preservation Fund Balance, in accordance with the provisions of M.G.L. Chapter 44B, additional
funding for the following project, based upon the Community Preservation Committee’s

recommendation:

Prl\(:i)e.a RIRIEEHIIES geplicant ARpeF::Jc::tt Recomg:acndation Acglgtrocg‘:'?a:?:n
Restoration of Nock | Newburyport Public Schools
11 Middle School & Newburyport Parks $50,000 $40,000 $29,295
Tennis Courts Department

Further, that $10,705 is hereby transferred from the remaining balance in the Nock/Molin

Loading Dock Renovation capital project account (#3914-58400) to the Restoration of Nock

Middle School Tennis Courts project. In addition to the $175,000 that was previously

appropriated on 10/25/2021, the total appropriation for said project is now $215,000.

In City Council March 28, 2022:

Councillor Sharif I. Zeid

Motion to refer ORDR00333, ORDR00334, ORDR00335, and ORDR00336 collectively to Budget &
Finance by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor Cameron. So voted.













NEWBURYPORT COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE
Supplemental Recommendation for FY22 Appropriations
(Restoration of Nock Middle School Tennis Courts)

The Newburyport Community Preservation Committee recommends that the City Council appropriate
from the Community Preservation Fund Balance additional funding for the following listed FY2022

project(s):

o FY2022: Project 11: Restoration of Nock Middle School Tennis Courts

This supplemental funding is subject to the terms and conditions set forth the in the signed Grant
Agreement dated December 21, 2021. Applications for all projects are available for review in the Office
of Planning & Development.

Respectfully submitted by:

Community Preservation Committee Members

Michael Dissette, Chair Jane Healey, Vice Chair
Mark Rosen Paul Healy

Tom O’Brien Don Walters

Don Little Joe Morgan

Charles Griffin

PROJECT NO. 11
RESTORATION OF THE NOCK MIDDLE SCHOOL TENNIS COURTS

The CPC recommends the appropriation of an additional $40,000 from the FY 2022 Community
Preservation Fund Balance to the Newburyport Parks Department and Newburyport Public Schools for
the renovation of Nock Middle School Tennis Courts.

The CPA category for this appropriation is Recreation.

Project Summary:

The Newburyport Parks Department and Newburyport Public Schools have submitted a supplemental
grant application for the Restoration of the Nock Middle School Tennis Courts project. There is a cost
overrun of $50,000 that needs to be addressed as soon as possible in order to move forward with the
contract award and avoid losing a critical portion of the summer 2022 construction season while school
is not in session. Construction bids from contractors were due in early March. The low base bid,
alternate bid #1 and contingency exceed the estimate that was developed in January of 2021 by $50,000
due to an expanded scope of work and escalating construction costs. The CPC voted at the meeting of
3/23/22 to recommend the appropriation of an additional $40,000 from the FY2022 Community
Preservation Fund Balance recognizing that the line item for a concrete sidewalk was not critical to
moving the project forward.


















































































































ORDR00335_03_28_2022

CITY OF NEWBURYPORT

IN CITY COUNCIL

ORDERED:

March 28, 2022

THAT, at the recommendation of the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Ad Hoc Committee, $2,400,000
is hereby appropriated from the City’s allocation of the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery
Funds (SLFRF) to pay costs of maintaining and/or repairing public streets, ways, walkways, and sidewalks
in accordance with years one and two of the City’s five-year street and sidewalk improvement plan. Fifty
percent (50%) of said appropriation shall take effect forthwith with the remaining fifty percent (50%) of
said appropriation to take effect upon receipt of the second tranche of the City’s SLFRF allocation. It is
the intent that any funds remaining upon completion of this project shall be reappropriated to another
project as recommended by the ARPA Ad Hoc Committee.

Councillor Bruce L. Vogel

Councillor Christine E. Wallace

Councillor Sharif I. Zeid

In City Council March 28, 2022:
Motion to refer ORDR00333, ORDR00334, ORDR00335, and ORDR00336 collectively to Budget &
Finance by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor Cameron. So voted.



American Rescue Plan Act: State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds
City of Newburyport Allocation Recommendations
March 22, 2022

ARPA Background

The Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (SLFRF) are a part of the American Rescue Plan
Act (ARPA) and it delivered over $350 billion to state, local, and Tribal governments across the country.
The funds are meant to support the local response to and recovery from the COVID-19 public health
emergency, and the Treasury department has allowed for significant flexibility in the use of these funds.
The January 6 2022 Final Rule on the SLFRF stated that any municipality’s first $10M can be used for
“Replacing Lost Public Sector Revenue,” a broad category that permits most uses. Newburyport’s entire
allocation is under this amount, and can all be spend on this category.

Newburyport will receive $5,466,707 total in SLFRF allocations, with the first half already received and
the remaining $2,733,353 coming in August 2022. These funds need to be obligated by December 31,
2024, and expended by December 31, 2026. An ARPA Ad Hoc Committee was convened in summer 2021
and approved an expenditure of $1,000,000 to support the Phillips Drive Drainage Project. Mayor
Reardon reconvened the Committee in February 2022 to discuss how to spend the remaining funds. The
Committee is comprised of Councillors Bruce Vogel, Christine Wallace, and Sharif Zeid.

The Committee decided in their second meeting that based on the needs of the City, they should
prioritize infrastructure projects for these funds. The Department of Public Services and the Mayor’s
Office provided the Committee a list of priority projects taken from the Capital Improvement Plan and
others flagged by the Mayor’s Capital Facilities Planning process. The Committee is recommending three
projects for funding at this time. Should any of these projects come in under the allocated amount, the
funds will be reallocated toward another infrastructure project recommended by the ARPA committee.

Recommended Projects

Streets and Sidewalks Improvements ($1,200,000 now, $2,400,000 total)

The City will appropriate $2,400,000 to pay costs of maintaining and/or repairing public streets, ways,
walkways, and sidewalks in accordance with years one and two of the City’s five-year street and
sidewalk improvement plan. Fifty percent of the appropriation will take place upon the City Council’s
vote, and the remaining fifty percent will take effect upon receipt of the second tranche of the City’s
SLFRF allocation in August 2022.

This plan was introduced to the City Council in their 3/14 Council Packet and is under consideration by
the Neighborhoods and City Services Committee. The City is sharing information about the plan on its
website and through social media, and has a petition program in place for residents to request
reconsideration of the order of street and sidewalk repair.

Amesbury Emergency Interconnection Project ($250,000)

The Department of Public Services has recommended approval, which was echoed by the ARPA
Committee, of appropriating $250,000 to pay costs of constructing and installing water line connection
points in Newburyport and Amesbury. This will create hookups for an emergency interconnection line
that will be utilized should Newburyport’s water not be drinkable in the event of an algae bloom or
another toxic event. Should an emergency occur, DPS will purchase the piping necessary to connect to



these connection points and install it so the City can utilize Amesbury’s water until the emergency
conditions have subsided. The City is completing an Intermunicipal Agreement with Amesbury so that
the terms of such an arrangement are negotiated well in advance of needing to use it. Attached is a
memo from Environmental Partners with more information about the project and why it has been
recommended.

Joppa Park Sea Wall ($100,000)

The Committee is recommending $100,000 be appropriated to pay costs of replacing and stabilizing the
walkway, which runs along the Joppa Park sea wall, including the installation of accessible paver aprons
that are needed to bring the park into compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)
standards. The sea wall will be stabilized using a specialized hardscape detail that is designed to prevent
future degradation due to tidal action and increasingly intensified storms and tidal action of the
Merrimack River. This will be supplemented by $60,000 from the Morrill Foundation, and the ARPA
funding will expedite the timeline for the project’s completion. The project will go to bid after the ARPA
funds are transferred and project construction can begin this season, shortly after the contractor is
selected. We anticipate the project can be completed in this calendar year, as long as there are not too
many delays due to supply chain issues.

Remaining Funding and Next Steps

Should these projects be funded, the City will have $1,716,707 left to disburse after receiving its second
tranche of funding. We have attached a list of potential infrastructure projects that are under
consideration, as well as the full listing of costs. As stated earlier, the ARPA Committee has reached
consensus that the remaining funds would best be used on infrastructure projects. These may include
design costs for larger projects so that they could be made shovel ready in case of additional funding
becoming available. The Committee has also discussed the possibilities of funding traffic safety projects,
and the Central Waterfront Bulkhead should more funding be needed. The Committee will plan to meet
after this allocation is complete to discuss the strategy on the remaining funds.






Water Supply

DPS Jamie Tuccolo WATER Protection DPS Requests in CIP $250,000
POLICE Mark Murray | POLICE STATION Building POLICE Dispatch upgrade $475,000
PARKS Lisé Reid ATKINSON Park PARKS Drainage and parking safety improvements

COMMON,
LOWER $800,000
PARKS Lisé Reid INN ST MALL/ Park PARKS Elevated walkway repairs
BYRON'S COURT LEUILY
PARKS Lisé Reid JOPPA PARK Park PARKS Walkway repairs along seawall, damage due to
tidal action $100,000
CHANNEL
HBR Paul Hogg DREDGE Other HBR Channel dredge $150,000
PLANNING Andy Port BULKHEAD Other PLANNING |Central waterfront, east bulkhead $3,000,000

$20,239,250




Committee Items-April 11, 2022

General Government
In Committee:

ORDR00324_03_14_2022
COMMO00401_03_28 2022
ORDRO00332_03_28_2022
ORDRO00337_03_28_2022

General Government

Ad Hoc on Adaptive Reuse of Brown School

Ltrs. IFS Settlement

Authorizing the Settlement-IFS & Planning Board Appeal (COTW)
Settlement High Street Paving 150K (COTW)



ORDR00324_03_14 2022
Amended 4 11 2022

CITY OF NEWBURYPORT

IN CITY COUNCIL

ORDERED:

Ad Hoc Committee on Adaptive Reuse of Brown School Property

Pursuant to Council Rule 7, the Ad Hoc Committee on Adaptive Reuse of the Brown School Property is hereby
established for this two-year legislative session upon the following terms and conditions.

Purpose & Goal
The Committee will be charged with reaching consensus for a viable “highest and best” future use(s) of the Brown

School building and property. The deliverables include a written report and recommendation to the full Council and
Mayor. The Ad Hoc Committee will review prior studies, Council actions, community and neighborhood input, and
guidance from key stakeholders with expertise and familiarity with the existing facility and any proposed future use(s).

Members:

1. Councillor Cameron, At-Large, Chair of Planning and Development Committee (Ad Hoc Chair)
2. Councillor Donahue, Ward 2

3. Councillor Preston, At-Large, Member of Planning and Development Committee

4. Councillor Wallace, Ward 4, Member of Planning and Development Committee

5. Councillor Zeid, Ward 1

Ex Officio (Non-Voting) Members:

1. Mayor Sean Reardon

2. Planning Director Andy Port

3. Designee of Mayor Reardon

4. Madeline Nash, Co-Chair, Newburyport Affordable Housing Trust
5. Karen Wiener, Member of Newburyport Affordable Housing Trust

Proposed Timeline:

1. Facility Walkthrough & Review of Prior Reports (feasibility studies, environmental assessments, etc.) [March]
April

2. Committee Meetings with key stakeholders (e.g. AHT, NYS, Facilities Manager, Office of Planning &
Development, etc.) [March] May

3. Public Meeting(s) with Brown School neighborhood and other interested stakeholders (e.g. AHT, NYS, Ward
Councilors, Facilities Manager, Office of Planning & Development, etc.) [April] May

4. Committee Meetings to discuss scope and basic terms for adaptive reuse(s): [April] June

a. Preservation of the Main Building and Playground Area



10.

11.
12.
13.

ORDR00324_03_14 2022
Amended 4 11 2022

Adaptive Reuse for Housing (type, feasible and appropriate unit/parking count, target population,
%/level of affordability/affordability mix) or other use deemed appropriate by the ad hoc or
administration.

b. Renovation/Reuse vs. Demolition of the Existing Gym Space

c. Mitigation of potential neighborhood impacts such as parking, snow parking, traffic.

d. Additional terms for any partner (non-profit or developer) to be included in a Request for Proposals

(RFP)
Submit Written Report and Recommendations to City Council and Mayor [May] July
Draft Request for Proposals (RFP) and any appropriate/required zoning amendments [May]

a. Assistance from Office of Planning & Development, based on parameters outlined by the Committee.
Issue Request for Proposals (RFP) and sponsor any appropriate/required zoning amendments if necessary
[June] August
Review RFP Responses and Select Highest Ranked Responsive Proposal [July-August] September-October
Ad Hoc Disbands with further activities managed by Administration and as needed City Council
Draft/sponsor Council action for disposition (by sale or lease) (defined portions as applicable) [September]
November
Disposition Process (e.g. lease/deed execution, closing) [October-November] January — February 2023
Permitting (non-profit/developer partner) [December — February 2023] February — March 2023
Construction Start [March-April 2023] May-June 2023

Council President Heather L. Shand

In City Council March 14, 2022:

Motion to refer to Planning & Development by Councillor Cameron, seconded by Councillor Vogel. Motion
withdrawn. Motion to refer to General Government by Councillor McCauley, seconded by Councillor VVogel.
So voted. 8 yes, 2 absent (BL, AK), 1 no (S2).



COMMO00401_03 28 2022
From: steve@knipmeyer.org <steve@knipmeyer.org>
Sent: Sunday, March 27, 2022 9:43 AM
To: Heather Shand
Cc: 'Sharon Knipmeyer'; steve@knipmeyer.org
Subject: IFS Settlement March 28, 2022

Councilor Shand,

Our family lives at 4 Otis Place where we are direct abutters to the proposed expansion of the Institution for
Savings. We are writing to express our strong opposition to a settlement.

Our small house and neighborhood would be negatively impacted by the proposed building. Our house is
literally in the shadow of the proposed addition, dwarfed by a structure that is far too large and inharmonious
with our historic neighborhood. So many of our fellow neighbors have given thoughtful and informed opinions
about the many ways the proposed design misses the mark. We agree.

We moved to Newburyport for many reasons. We were especially drawn by the beauty and architectural
heritage of the city, protected by the oversight processes of the permitting boards . We trusted this commitment
to historic preservation would deliver the right outcome to the proposed expansion. The Planning Board was
correct in May, 2021 when it denied the proposal.

We are greatly disappointed that the city is once again considering a settlement, reversing the thoughtful
decision rendered by the Planning Board. The citizens of Newburyport deserve the right to have the IFS appeal
heard and judged in Land Court where we fully expect the Planning Board decision to be validated. It is a
troubling distortion of process for the city not to support the Planning Board by allowing the Land Court to hear
this case.

Thank you for your consideration.

Steve and Sharon Knipmeyer

4 Otis Place

Newburyport, MA 01950


mailto:steve@knipmeyer.org
mailto:steve@knipmeyer.org
mailto:steve@knipmeyer.org







ORDR00332_03 28 2022

CITY OF NEWBURYPORT

IN CITY COUNCIL

ORDERED:

March 28, 2022

AN ORDER TO AUTHORIZE THE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN
THE CITY AND THE INSTITUTION FOR SAVINGS RELATING TO AN APPEAL TO
LAND COURT OF A PLANNING BOARD DECISION

Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Newburyport as follows:

THAT the City Council of the City of Newburyport hereby accepts and recommends to the
Planning Board the Settlement Agreement dated October 4, 2021 and attached hereto and
referred to as Attachment ‘A’. Said Settlement Agreement was entered into after a Mediation
with the Honorable Mitchell H. Kaplan (Ret.) serving as mediator and it was by and between the
City of Newburyport and the Institution for Savings and relates to an appeal to the Land Court
Docket No. 21 MISC 000237 of a Planning Board Decision by The Institution For Savings and
further includes the following, to wit:

1. Exhibit 1 — the colored renderings of the proposed changes

Councillor Heather L. Shand

In City Council March 28, 2022:

Motion to refer ORDR00332 and ORDR00337 collectively to General Government by
Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor McCauley. So voted.

Motion to waive the rules to collectively remove ORDR00332 and ORDR00337 from
General Government and collectively refer back to General Government and the COTW by
Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor McCauley. So voted.

Page 1 of 1



SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

WHEREAS the Institution for Savings in Newburyport and its Vicinity (the
“INSTITUTION?”), the City of Newburyport (the “CITY”) and the City of Newburyport
Planning Board and its Members (the “PLANNING BOARD?”) (together with the CITY, the
“CITY DEFENDANTS”) (collectively, the “PARTIES”) ate parties to that certain action
captioned Institution for Savings in Newburyport and its Vicinity v. City of Newburyport, et
al, Land Court Docket No. 21 MISC 000237 (HPS), (the “LAWSUIT”) wherein the
INSTITUTION seeks to overturn the PLANNING BOARD’s denials of a special permit and
site plan approval for an addition to the INSTITUTION’s banking headquarters in downtown
Newburyport, but also including a challenge to the CITY’s Downtown Overlay District; and

WHEREAS the INSTITUTION and the undersigned CITY officials (the “CITY
PARTIES”), on behalf of the CITY DEFENDANTS, duly-authorized, have engaged in
mediation with the Honorable Mitchell H. Kaplan (Ret.), serving as mediator, and now agree
to resolve the LAWSUIT, pending PLANNING BOARD approvals on remand, on the
following terms and conditions, which are the product of negotiation and compromise,
deemed by the PARTIES to be in their mutual interest;

NOW, THEREFORE, the PARTIES hereby agree as follows:

1. That, upon joint Motion submitted by the PARTIES by and through their
respective counsel-of-record, the LAWSUIT shall be remanded to the PLANNING BOARD
for a further consolidated public hearing on the INSTITUTION’s special permit and site plan
approval applications; and the PLANNING BOARD shall use best efforts to conclude its
review in one (1) meeting if reasonably possible. The PLANNING BOARD shall reconsider
its votes on said applications; it being anticipated that the PLANNING BOARD will vote to
approve the same based on the materials and plans last before the PLANNING BOARD
before it voted to deny, i.e. on March 17, 2021, see Exhibit I to the Complaint filed in the
LAWSUIT, but subject to the following negotiated revisions thereto and other commitments:

(a) The INSTITUTION has committed to, and will, incorporate the
design changes shown on the renderings annexed hereto as Exhibit 1,
to give the appearance of height reductions for both the addition and
its connector to the existing Bank building. These changes include a
lowering of the addition’s cornice height; as well as continuance of said
cornice height through the aforesaid connector, replacing the exterior
treatment above said cornice with copper.! The INSTITUTION’s
architect shall present the PLANNING BOARD with two (2) options
for copper detailing.

(b) Along the addition’s Prospect Street facade, the so-called central bay

! During and between mediation sessions, the INSTITUTION did establish, and support by statements from its
engineer and architect, that any further reduction in the (eave) height of the addition and/or connector presents
numerous challenges implicating means of egress, stormwater management, site grading and emergency access.
The cost and uncertainty associated with such an attempted reduction outweighs any de minimus height reduction
that might be achieved, which would be imperceptiable to the average person.



will be given a recessed appearance by extending the building facades
toward Prospect Street to provide an 18-inch return, as shown on the
rendering annexed hereto as Exhibit 1.

(©) The INSTITUTION confirms that the facade of the addition will
utilize brick of a different color variation than that comprising the
existing, i.e. circa-1980, addition to the Bank, so as to distinguish it
visually; provided, however, that the brick facade of the connector
shall be consistent with the brick of the 1980s addition.

(d) First-floor, i.e on-grade, windows on the addition’s Prospect Street
facade will be comprised of spandrel glass. Spandrel glass is opaque
glass that is often used to conceal structural building components such
as columns, floors, HVAC systems, vents, electrical wiring and
plumbing, preventing these from being visible from the exterior of the
building. It will also function to prevent the spill of light from vehicles
(or other sources) onto Prospect Street. The INSTITUTION will
provide a sample of the glass to be used.

(e) The INSTITUTION will present to the PLANNING BOARD, on
remand, a comprehensive planting plan prepared by its landscape
consultant including the areas immediatley adjacent to the addition
along both Prospect Street and Otis Place; it being understood the the
PLANNING BOARD is expected to request dense plantings to soften
the appearance of the addition.

® The INSTITUTION will also present the PLANNING BOARD, on
remand, as a part of the aforesaid planting plan, a proposal for
separating the aforementioned planting beds from the adjacent
sidewalks, e.g. by raising them by approximately six (6) inches above
the grade of the sidewalk.

(2) A noise and exhaust study will be provided as requested, to verify no
meaningful impact(s) on the neighborhood or the City. Specifically,
the INSTITUTION will measure pre- and post-develompent noise
and exhaust, using a professional qualified to complete the same, and
will submit the results thereof to the CITY.? Should mitigation be
required, the INSTITUTION will work with the CITY
DEFENDANTS in good faith to effectuate the same.

2, All CITY PARTIES agree to recommend and support the approval of the
special permit and site plan upon the terms set forth herein.

3. That the within Agreement (the “AGREEMENT”) and the PARTIES’

2The INSTITUTION expects a reduction in noise and exhaust, where the Bank’s generator, presently outdoors,
will be relocated to the interior of the strucutre; where vehicle parking will likewise be moved inside; and where
a new mechanical exhaust system will be installed.



respective obligations hereunder are expressly contingent upon the PLANNING BOARD
issuing a special permit and site plan approval to the INSTITUTION on the terms described
above, and none other. The PARTIES further agree that, if the special permit and site plan
approval have not been filed with the City Clerk by December 16, 2021, this AGREEMENT
shall become null and void unless extended by agreement of the PARTIES.

4, That, upon the PLANNING BOARD’s approvals and passage of the appeal
periods without appeals, and the subsequent and immediate recording of the PLANNING
BOARD’s decisions with the Essex South District Registty of Deeds, the PARTIES shall
forthwith file with the Land Court a Stipulation of Dismissal of the LAWSUIT, with prejudice
and with all rights of appeal waived, each PARTY to be responsible for its own costs, expenses
and attorney’s fees incurred in connection with the LAWSUIT, whether in advance thereof,
during the litigation or otherwise associated therewith, including for mediation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, the PARTIES execute this AGREEMENT, under seal,
as of and effective on the date indicated below.

INSTITUTION

f
Date: October 4, 2021 By: M// /«;-V

I\/Iicilael ye jgnelg
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: October 4, 2021

Executive Vice-President and Chief
Operating Officer

Date:  October 4, 2021 K%\
Adam .

sq.

Counsel

CITY_RARTIES

Date; October 4, 2021

;
Qied i E%r{if};\}

uncil Pre

Date: October 4, 2021 KJM’{ ({ M&Mf

Heather L. Shand
Councilor




Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

October 4, 2021

October 4, 2021

October 4, 2021

October 4, 2021

October 4, 2021

Donna D. Holaday
Mayor

— dkf“f\(

Bonnie Sontag

Plannmg Board C/z [&L\

M.]J. Verde
Planning Board Member

) ot X 2y t/f/{,gm\_ﬁ,

]onarhan 15 Eﬁ':hmanuéq
City Solicitor

MEDIATOR

('Kwéw

Honorable Mitchell H. Kaplan (Ret.)









Fage 3 of

m'.. . .

—
.ﬁ -

LLLL Rt

¥




7 T

T




CITY OF NEWBURYPORT
IN CITY COUNCIL

AN ORDER TO JOINTLY REQUEST THE LAND COURT TO REMAND TO THE PLANNING
BOARD FOR FURTHER CONSIDERATION LITIGATION BETWEEN THE CITY AND THE
INSTITUTION FOR SAVINGS RELATING TO AN APPEAL OF A PLANNING BOARD
DECISION

Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Newburyport as follows:

THAT the City Council of the City of Newburyport hereby agrees to jointly request a remand to
the Planning Board, to be conducted pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement dated
October 4, 2021 and attached hereto and referred to as Attachment ‘A’, as amended to extend
the Planning Board’s time for decision and filing to June 3, 2022, of the appeal to the Land
Court (Docket No. 21 MISC 000237) of a Planning Board Decision concerning The Institution
For Savings, for the purpose of allowing the Planning Board to reconsider the decision on
appeal. Said Settlement Agreement was entered into by and between the City of Newburyport
and the Institution for Savings after a mediation with the Honorable Mitchell H. Kaplan (Ret.)
serving as mediator, and further includes the following, to wit:

1. Exhibit 1 — the colored renderings of the proposed changes

In City Council March 28, 2022:
Motion to refer ORDR00332 and ORDR00337 collectively to General Government by Councillor
Zeid, seconded by Councillor McCauley. So voted.

Motion to waive the rules to collectively remove ORDR00332 and ORDR00337 from General
Government and collectively refer back to General Government and the COTW by Councillor
Zeid, seconded by Councillor McCauley. So voted.




ORDR00337_03_28_2022

CITY OF NEWBURYPORT

IN CITY COUNCIL

ORDERED:

March 28, 2022

AN ORDER TO AUTHORIZE THE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN
THE CITY AND THE RELATING TO LAWSUIT OVER THE PAVING OF HIGH STREET

Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Newburyport as follows:

THAT the City Council of the City of Newburyport hereby approves and authorizes the Mayor
of the City of Newburyport to enter into a Settlement Agreement relating to the civil action
entitled “City of Newburyport v. Hi-Way Systems and Travelers Indemnity Company, Essex
Superior Court C.A. 2177CVv00128”.

The total settlement amount is One Hundred and Fifty Thousand ($150,000) Dollars. Once this
authorization is approved, the Defendants’ attorney will provide a release to the City of
Newburyport..

Councillor Heather L. Shand

In City Council March 28, 2022:

Motion to refer ORDR00332 and ORDRO00337 collectively to General Government by
Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor McCauley. So voted.

Motion to waive the rules to collectively remove ORDR00332 and ORDR00337 from
General Government and collectively refer back to General Government and the COTW by
Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor McCauley. So voted.






Committee Items-April 11, 2022
Neighborhood & City Services

Neighborhoods & City Services
In Committee:

e ODNCO00109 03 14 2022 Amendment to Sidewalks Specifying Sidewalk Materials
e COMMO0395 03 14 2022 St. & Sidewalk Repair Plan



ODNCO00109 03 14 2022
Amended 04 05 2022

CITY OF NEWBURYPORT

IN CITY COUNCIL

ORDERED:

March 14,2022

Sec. 12-54. Street, way or grounds specifications.

(a) Design and methods specifications. Any change in grade of any such street, way or grounds, or of any
sidewalk of any such street, way or grounds, or the width of any such sidewalk, including, without limitation,
by installing, constructing, maintaining, repairing, replacing, reconstructing installing a sidewalk and/or a
driveway opening, or in any manner alter the grade, width or direction of any curbstone of such sidewalk,
including when undertaken by the department of public services itself, shall be undertaken in compliance
with both this section and also the "Construction and Traffic Standard Details" promulgated by the
department of public services.

(1) Forthe purposes of clarification, neither the Clipper City Rail Trail nor the Harbor Walk constitute
sidewalks under the meaning of this section.

(2) The department of public services may amend its Construction and Traffic Standard Details, from time
to time, provided, however, that no such amendment shall take effect until a copy has first been
posted on the city website for a period of thirty (30) calendar days to solicit comment from interested
parties, including other city departments, and has been approved by order of the city council.

(b) Sidewalk materials.

sefe Required and permitted materials. At the time of installation,
construction, maintenance, repair, replacement, or reconstruction of any sidewalk located in the city
and open to public travel, whether such sidewalks are located on public or private land, the surface
material shall be-eithesbrick-orcement—and-ne-sthermaterials, as follows:

a. Downtown. Brick shall be the required surface material for all sidewalks located within the
Downtown Overlay District, established under section XXVIII of the zoning ordinance.

b. Historic areas outside of downtown. Brick shall be the encouraged surface material for all
sidewalks located outside of the Downtown Overlay District but within the Newburyport Historic
District, which was listed on the National Register of Historic Places and the State Register of
Historic Places on August 2, 1984, and both brick and cement shall be permitted therein.

c. All other areas. Cement shall be the required surface material for all sidewalks located outside of
the Newburyport Historic District.

d. Exception: Asphalt may be used as an alternative material anywhere in the City upon obtaining a
waiver granted by City Council Order.




(c)

(2)

(3)

ODNCO00109 03 14 2022
Amended 04 05 2022

e. Asphalt or stone dust as a sidewalk material to go over tree roots anywhere in the City where it is
deemed that such material would ensure the continued good health of the tree.

Existing nonconforming sidewalk surfaces. Any sidewalk open to public travel whose surface does not
comply with this section as of its effective date may remain in such noncompliance until such time as it
is maintained, repaired, replaced, and reconstructed, at which time it shall be brought into compliance.

Temporary asphalt surfaces. Notwithstanding anything in this section to the contrary, the department
of public services may, in its discretion, permit the temporary use of asphalt surface material for
sidewalks: (A) for a period no than two (2) months, tolled from November 1 through April 30; and/or
(B) for sidewalks abutting undeveloped parcels until issuance of a certificate of occupancy. The
department shall specify in writing the time by which brick or cement surface material, as the case may
be, shall replace the temporary asphalt material.

City supervision. In all cases, any work subject to this section 12-54 shall be performed by the department or
a licensed contractor of the city supervised by the department.

@

©)

4

Existing nonconforming sidewalk surfaces. Any sidewalk open to public travel whose surface does not
comply with this section as of its effective date may remain in such noncompliance until such time as it is
patched, substantially repaired, replaced, and reconstructed, at which time it shall be brought into
compliance.

For the purposes of this section, “patches” shall mean repairs that involve 25 sq ft. of sidewalk area or
less. Generally, patches are intended to address immediate public safety and accessibility issues.
Patches shall not be performed together on the same block face so avoid the requirements of a non-
substantial repair.

For the purposes of this section, non-substantial repairs shall constitute repairs of a continuous stretch of
sidewalk where the linear distance of the repair is no more than thirty-five (35) feet in length, and all other
repairs shall be deemed to be “substantial repairs.” Non-substantial repairs shall not be performed
together on the same block face and so avoid the requirements of a substantial repair.

Temporary asphalt surfaces. Notwithstanding anything in this section to the contrary, the Department of
Public Services may, in its discretion, permit the temporary use of asphalt surface material in areas of the
City where asphalt would otherwise not be permitted under this section but solely in the following two
instances:

a. Temporary patches, as defined in subsection (2) above, provided that the material is restored to the
materials required or permitted under subsection (1), above, as soon as is practicable, and in no case
later than one (1) year from the date such temporary patch is installed; or

b. Temporary non-substantial repairs, as defined in subsection (2) above, where the surface material
being repaired is existing asphalt.

Special material allowance for sidewalks with tree roots. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this
section, 12-54, the Department of Public Services may utilize asphalt or stone dust as a sidewalk material
to go over tree roots anywhere in the City where it is deemed that such material would ensure the
continued good health of the tree

Sharif I. Zeid, Ward 1 City Councillor

James J McCauley, Ward 5 City Councillor



ODNCO00109 03 14 2022
Amended 04 05 2022

In City Council March 14, 2022:
Motion to refer to Neighborhood & City Services by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor
McCauley. So voted.



COMMO00395_03_14 2022

Newburyport Street and Sidewalk Repair Plan
Introduction

Street Selection

In 2020, engineering consultant BETA finished an audit of all City streets and sidewalks and evaluated
their condition and what paving work is recommended to be completed, including mill and overlay,
reclamation, or surface treatment. They also estimated the costs of all these improvement on the
various streets and sidewalks. The Newburyport Department of Public Services (DPS) used this
information to create a prioritization plan based on a budget of S2M per/year. The Mayor’s office made
the decision to work on three wards at a time, beginning with wards 1, 3, and 5, and following up with 2,
4, and 6, to make sure all wards received attention. The plan prioritizes roads in each ward that are
classified as being in the worst condition, and groups them by geography and cost. This means DPS and
their contractors will be able to complete the work in the different wards for around the same cost
amount each year and all wards will have their priority roads addressed.

Street and Sidewalk Repair Process

DPS, with the collaboration of the City Engineer, will create and design plans for all new roads and
sidewalks and will seek additional input for any new crosswalks. Most paving and sidewalk work will be
Replacement In Kind (RIK) and will follow existing plans and conditions. DPS has awarded a contract to
D&R Paving following the process laid out in MA General Law which requires that they then pursue a
contract with the lowest qualified bidder. The work done will fit into the following categories:

e Reclamation: Removes all asphalt by grinding and pulverizing in place to create a uniform base
material before the road is repaved.

o Mill & Overlay: Removes the top layer of asphalt typically ranging between 2-2.5 inches, and
then replaces this layer with a new Hot Melt Asphalt surface.

e Surface treatment: Patching and seal coating of the road, with no removal process. Appropriate
for roads that are currently classified as fair or good.

Plan for Including Additional Streets

As the initial study used for this plan was completed in 2020, we understand conditions may have
changed in some places and want to be responsive to any streets urgent in need of service. The Mayor’s
Office and DPS have created a petition process that can be used to request another look at any streets
not included in the plan. Residents may submit a petition signed by five residents on a street, or a
majority of houses on the street (whichever is smaller). After receiving the petition, a committee will
review the street and determine if it can be added to the plan. A public meeting will be held to respond
to all received petitions and discuss next steps.

Ward System

Wards 2, 4, and 6 will receive street and sidewalk repairs in the first year following the end of this plan,
FY28. While this is a five-year plan, we anticipate repeating this process in the future and prioritizing the
next round of repairs in a similar manner. It will make more sense to evaluate the needs of Wards 2, 4,
and 6 for FY28 when we are closer to that date.



COMMO00395_03_14 2022

Communication

The City will have a dedicated page on its website with updates on this project, including maps of the
streets scheduled for repair and reminders on when the repairs are underway. We will also use our
social media channels to share updates. There will be an annual public meeting discussing the streets
and sidewalks scheduled for repair and covering the progress made in the year before.



Committee Items-April 11, 2022

Planning & Development

Planning & Development
In Committee:

e COMMO00382_01_31 2022 Update from Global re 107 State Street
e (ODNCO00105 02 14 2022 Zoning Amendment Business Park Uses
e APPT00305 03 14 2022 Dan Mello 2 B Fulton St. Waterfront Trust 3/31/2027



COMMO00382_01_31_20:


ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text

ksullivan
Typewritten Text
COMM00382_01_31_2022

ksullivan
Typewritten Text


ODNCO00105_02_14 2022

CITY OF NEWBURYPORT

IN CITY COUNCIL

ORDERED:

February 14, 2022

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE NEWBURYPORT ZONING
ORDINANCE, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THOSE USES PERMITTED WITHIN THE
NEWBURYPORT BUSINESS PARK

Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Newburyport as follows:

THAT Section V-D of the Newburyport Zoning Ordinance, entitled “Table of use regulations” is hereby
amended to read as follows with respect to the specific uses so noted, with deletions deslestricken-

threugh-andn-beld, and additions double-underlined and in bold:

USE NUM | CON HSR-A, R-1 | R-2 R-3 | B-1 | B-2 B-3 I-1 I-1B I-2 M WMD WMU
HSR-B

Community 216 NP NP NP | P NP NP | NP NP Np Y NP NP NP NP NP
center
Boat 701 NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP P P
sales/sepsice
steragefrental
Marine 703 NP NP NP | NP | NP NR | NP NP NP NP NP NP P P
equipment SP
sales o
Marine repair 704 NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NR NR NP NP P P
services sp® sp®
Marine 705 NP NP NP | NP | NP NP | NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP
manufacturing sp® | sp®
Shipbuilding/ 706 NP NP NP | NP | NP NP | NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP
repar se¥ | sp¥

ODNCO00105_02_14 2022 Zoning Amendment Business Park Uses Page 1 of 3



ODNCO00105_02_14 2022

Canvas and 707 NP NP NP | NP | NP NP | NP NP | MR [NR | NP | NP NP NP
canvas sp® sp9
products
Seafood 708 | NP NP NP | NP | NP NP | NP NP [NR | NR | NP | NP P SP
handling/ sP? | sp®
distribution
Marine retail 709 | NP NP NP | NP | NP | NR SR |sPR NP NP NP | NP P P
SP | NP | NP
=B
tndoorrack 711 | NP NP NP | NP | NP NP | NP NP [NR | NR | NP | NP P P
bBoat storage sP? | sp®
Marina and 712 NP NP NP | NP | NP P NP NP | NP NP P NP P P
related
NOTES:
(i)
(1) The planning board shall act as the designated special permit granting authority (SPGA) for this use.

AND FURTHER, THAT Section V-E of the Newburyport Zoning Ordinance, entitled “List of allowable
uses” is hereby amended to read as follows with respect to the specific uses so noted, with deletions

, and additions double-underlined and in bold:

USE NUM DESCRIPTION

Boat sales-sertcesterage and rental | 701 Boat sales—sepsice—storage; and
rental.

indoor+ack bBoat storage 711 iadeersStorage of boats, including
rack storage

AND FURTHER, THAT Section VII-B of the Newburyport Zoning Ordinance, entitled “Parking
requirements” is hereby amended to read as follows w1th respect to the specific uses so noted, to be

added therein with deletions
bold:

, and additions double-underlined and in

USE

PARKING REQUIREMENT

Community center

lper 500 square feetof GEA |

ODNCO00105_02_14 2022 Zoning Amendment Business Park Uses

Page 2 of 3



ODNCO00105_02_14 2022

Councillor Heather L. Shand

Councillor Constance Preston

Councillor Bruce L. Vogel

In City Council February 14, 2022:
Councillor Lane recused. Motion to refer to Planning and Development by Councillor Vogel, seconded by
Councillor Preston. Roll call vote. 7 yes, 3 no (JM, MW, SZ), 1 recused (BL). Motion passes.

ODNCO00105_02_14 2022 Zoning Amendment Business Park Uses Page 30f 3















Committee Items-April 11, 2022
Public Safety

Public Safety
In Committee:

e APPL00067_03_28 2022 Newburyport Lions Club Road Race 8/2/2022
e ORDRO00331 03 28 2022 Loading Zone Green Street



APPL00067_03_28_20:


ksullivan
Typewritten Text
APPL00067_03_28_2022
































ORDR00331_03_28_2022

CITY OF NEWBURYPORT

IN CITY COUNCIL

ORDERED:

March 28, 2022

ORDERED:
AN ORDER SUSPENDING THE SERVICE ZONE ON GREEN STREET:

BE IT ORDERED, that:

The service zone located on the westerly side of Green Street adjacent to 26 Green Street is hereby
suspended from May 1, 2022 to October 31, 2022 in order to allow the use of said zone for outdoor
restaurant seating. Said service zone runs for a distance of 60 feet pursuant to Sec. 13 — 171.

Councillor Donahue

Councillor McCauley

In City Council March 28, 2022:

Motion to refer to Public Safety by Councillor Zeid, seconded by Councillor Cameron. So
voted.



	AGENDA
	CONSENT AGENDA
	MINUTES
	COMMUNICATIONS
	COMM402_04_11_2022 12 Cushing Ave Paper St. Inquiry

	APPL00068_04_11_2022	Flag Day 5K June 11th 4-8 pm

	APPL00069_04_11_2022	Newburyport Pioneer League Tag Day May 7th 9am-1pm
	COMM00403_04_11_2022   Annual Audit of City’s FY2021 Financial Statements

	APPL00070_04_11_2022     Spring Fest Chamber of Commerce May 14th-15th 10am-8pm

	COMM00404_04_11_2022 KP Law Opinion RE Property Disposition & Votes
	COMM00405_04_11_2022 Mayor's Strategic Plan

	TRANSFERS
	TRAN00123_04_11_2022Fire-Foam & Equip $2000, Fire-New Hose Fit $3,000, and Fire-Protective Clothing $3,100 to Fire-Software $8,100
	TRAN00124_04_11_2022 RRFA Sale of Municipal Buildings $30K to NYS Center Schematic Design $30K

	APPOINTMENTS FIRST READING
	APPT00308_04_11_2022 Marci Neville Council on Aging                       
	APPT00309_04_11_2022 Jeanette Isabella Emma Andrews Lib. Comm.     
	APPT00310_04_11_2022 Rebecca Regnet Trust Fund Comm.
	
APPT00311_04_11_2022 Nicole Whalen Parks Comm.
	APPT00312_04_11_2022 George Aranea Cultural Council



	REGULAR AGENDA

	COMMUNICATIONS

	COMM00406_04_11_2022 LATE FILE Pioneer League Letter re: Pickleball

	ORDERS
	ORDR 00338_04_11_2022 Capital Improvement Program FY2023-2027

	ORDR00339_04_11_2022 Authorizing Agreement between City and Daily News re Lot

	ORDR00340_04_11_2022 Fair Share Resolution

	ORDR00341_04_11_2022 LATE FILE Blue Wave Solar Pilot Negotiation  
	ORDR00342_04_11_2022 CPC-FY22-Supplementary Bartlet Mall-Historic Restoration Walkway Improv.


	ORDINANCES
	ODNC00106_02_14_2022 2nd Reading CH2 COA Amendment   

	COMMITTEE ITEMS
	Ad Hoc Committee on Market Landing Parkand COTW
	ORDR00326_03_14_2022 To Approve Sasaki Design Progress


	Budget & Finance
	ORDR00333_03_28_2022 CPC FY22 Supplementary Nock Tennis Restoration 

	ORDR00335_03_28_2022 ARPA 2.4K Streets Sidewalks 


	GENERAL GOVERNMENT
	ORDR00324_03_14_2022 Ad Hoc on Adaptive Reuse of Brown School 

	COMM00401_03_28_2022 Ltrs. IFS Settlement

	ORDR00332_03_28_2022 Authorizing the Settlement - IFS and Planning Board Appeal (COTW)  
	ORDR00337_03_28_2022 Settlement High Street Paving 150K (COTW)       

	Neighborhood & City Services

	ODNC00109_03_14_2022 Amendment to Sidewalks Specifying Sidewalk Materials 
	COMM00395_03_14_2022 Street & Sidewalk Repair Plan


	Planning & Development
	COMM00382_01_31_2022 Update from Global re 107 State Street

	ODNC00105_02_14_2022 Zoning Amendment Business Park Uses 
	APPT00305_03_14_2022 Dan Mello Waterfront Trust

	Public Safety
	APPL00067_03_28_2022 Newburyport Lions Club Road Race 8/2/2022 
	ORDR00331_03_28_2022






WARD1

		Ward 1 FY 23

		Street Name		From Street		To Street		Road Repair Calendar Year		General Condition		Proposed Repair Method		Length (Ft)		Length (Miles)		Road Surface Rating (RSR)		Sidewalk Repair Calendar Year		Sidewalk Material Proposed		Estimated Cost

		WATER STREET		SHANDEL DR		UNION ST		2022		Poor		Mill & Overlay		761.96		0.14		59		NA		NA		$   22,750.00

		WATER STREET		UNION ST		GOODWINS AVE		2022		Fair		Mill & Overlay		552.14		0.10		67		NA		NA		$   22,750.00

		WATER STREET		GOODWINS AVE		WOODWELL AVE		2022		Fair		Mill & Overlay		405.10		0.08		63		NA		NA		$   22,750.00

		WATER STREET		WOODWELL AVE		MARLBORO ST		2022		Poor		Mill & Overlay		274.48		0.05		59		NA		NA		$   22,750.00

		ALTER COURT		BARTON ST		DEAD END		2022		Poor		Reclamation		179.25		0.03		29		TBD		Asphalt		$   22,800.00

		BARTON COURT		BARTON ST		DEAD END		2022		Poor		Reclamation		203.92		0.04		10		TBD		Asphalt		$   32,600.00

		BARTON STREET		ALTER CT		BARTON CT		2022		Poor		Reclamation		250.80		0.05		6		TBD		Asphalt		$   40,600.00

				BARTON CT		CHESTNUT ST		2022		Poor		Reclamation		260.75		0.05		6		TBD		Asphalt		$   40,600.00

				HIGH ST		ALTER CT		2022		Poor		Reclamation		395.97		0.07		20		TBD		Asphalt		$   40,600.00

		GOODWINS AVE		UNION ST		WATER ST		2022		Very Poor		Reclamation		179.22		0.03		5		NA		NA		$   12,000.00

		MILK ST		FRANKLIN ST		BROMFIELD ST		2022		Very Poor		Reclamation		264.28		0.05		38		NA		NA		$   31,666.67

																		TOTAL						$   311,866.67



		Ward 1 FY 25

		Street Name		From Street		To Street		Road Repair Calendar Year		General Condition		Proposed Repair Method		Length (Ft)		Length (Miles)		Road Surface Rating (RSR)		Sidewalk Repair Calendar Year		Sidewalk Material Proposed		Estimated Cost

		HIGH ST E		BROMFIELD ST		BARTON ST		2024		Poor		Surface Treatment		308.36		0.06		52		2023		TBD		$   18,633.01

		NEPTUNE STREET		PURCHASE ST		WATER ST		2024		Fair		Mill & Overlay		635.18		0.12		72		2023		TBD		$   172,342.45

		LANCASTER ROAD		SHANDEL DR		CUL DE SAC		2024		Poor		Mill & Overlay		274.11		0.05		66		2023		TBD		$   17,944.04

																		TOTAL						$   208,919.51



		Ward 1 FY 27

		Street Name		From Street		To Street		Road Repair Calendar Year		General Condition		Proposed Repair Method		Length (Ft)		Length (Miles)		Road Surface Rating (RSR)		Sidewalk Repair Calendar Year		Sidewalk Material Proposed		Estimated Cost

		SMITH'S STREET		BECK ST		WATER ST		2026		Poor		Reclamation		575.37		0.11		33		2025		TBD		$   104,308.94

		LUNT STREET		PURCHASE ST		HANCOCK ST		2026		Poor		Mill & Overlay		380.85		0.07		45		2025		TBD		$   77,342.97

		LIME STREET		BECK ST		WATER ST		2026		Poor		Mill & Overlay		565.23		0.11		47		2025		TBD		$   142,886.28

		SHIP STREET		WATER ST		BECK ST		2026		Fair		Mill & Overlay		570.58		0.11		71		2025		TBD		$   72,865.42

		BECK STREET		SHIP ST		SMITH ST		2026		Poor		Reclamation		105.22		0.02		29		2025		TBD		$   24,698.35

				SMITH ST		LIME ST		2026		Poor		Reclamation		198.45		0.04		39		2025		TBD		$   54,408.73

																		TOTAL						$   476,510.69







WARD2

		Ward 2 FY 24

		Street Name		From Street		To Street		Road Repair Calendar Year		General Condition		Proposed Repair Method		Length (Ft)		Length (Miles)		Road Surface Rating (RSR)		Sidewalk Repair Calendar Year		Sidewalk Material Proposed		Estimated Cost

		FAIR ST		CHARTER ST		SPRING ST		2023		Very Poor		Reclamation		139.00		0.03		28		TBD		TBD		$   12,598.79

				ESSEX ST		MIDDLE ST		2023		Poor		Reclamation		172.94		0.03		49		TBD		TBD		$   15,675.68

				LIBERTY ST		WATER ST		2023		Fair		Reclamation		530.66		0.10		61		TBD		TBD		$   74,821.35

				MIDDLE ST		LIBERTY ST		2023		Poor		Reclamation		187.88		0.04		58		TBD		TBD		$   26,490.30

				ORANGE ST		CHARTER ST		2023		Very Poor		Reclamation		63.49		0.01		23		TBD		TBD		$   5,754.54

				PROSPECT ST		TEMPLE ST		2023		Poor		Reclamation		166.30		0.03		60		TBD		TBD		$   15,073.10

				SPRING ST		ESSEX ST		2023		Very Poor		Reclamation		85.72		0.02		8		TBD		TBD		$   7,769.37

				TEMPLE ST		ORANGE ST		2023		Very Poor		Reclamation		171.49		0.03		34		TBD		TBD		$   25,727.18

		FRUIT ST		HIGH ST		PROSPECT ST		2023		Poor		Mill & Overlay		576.47		0.11		59		2022		Brick		$   150,834.29

		MIDDLE ST		CENTER ST		FAIR ST		2023		Poor		Reclamation		339.00		0.06		51		TBD		TBD		$   61,193.13

				FAIR ST		INDEPENDENT ST		2023		Very Poor		Reclamation		193.43		0.04		29		TBD		TBD		$   47,771.76

				INDEPENDENT ST		FEDERAL ST		2023		Very Poor		Reclamation		416.66		0.08		35		TBD		TBD		$   92,232.84

		MILK ST		FEDERAL ST		LIME ST		2022		Poor		Reclamation		612.10		0.12		59		TBD		TBD		$   168,627.53

				LIME ST		FRANKLIN ST		2022		Very Poor		Reclamation		501.89		0.10		37		TBD		TBD		$   105,745.47

																		TOTAL 						$   810,315.32



		Ward 2 FY 26

		Street Name		From Street		To Street		Road Repair Calendar Year		General Condition		Proposed Repair Method		Length (Ft)		Length (Miles)		Road Surface Rating (RSR)		Sidewalk Repair Calendar Year		Sidewalk Material Proposed		Estimated Cost

		ALLEN STREET		HIGH ST		PROSPECT ST		2025		Poor		Reclamation		655.26		0.12		25		2024		TBD		$   284,496.36

		SCHOOL STREET		FEDERAL ST		LIME ST		2025		Poor		Mill & Overlay		602.86		0.11		59		2024		TBD		$   230,221.80

		GARDEN STREET		OTIS PL		STATE ST		2025		Poor		Mill & Overlay		338.05		0.06		59		2024		TBD		$   128,333.38

																		TOTAL 						$   643,051.54





WARD3

		Ward 3 FY 23

		Street Name		From Street		To Street		Road Repair Year		General Condition		Proposed Repair Method		Length (Ft)		Length (Miles)		Road Surface Rating (RSR)		Sidewalk Repair Calendar Year		Sidewalk Material Proposed		Estimated Cost

		BOARDMAN ST		ATKINSON ST		MERRIMAC ST		2022		Poor		Mill & Overlay		559.14		0.11		54		2022		Brick		$   115,000.00

				HIGH ST		WASHINGTON ST		2022		Poor		Mill & Overlay		441.81		0.08		48		2022		Brick		$   115,000.00

				WASHINGTON ST		ATKINSON ST		2022		Poor		Mill & Overlay		345.41		0.07		48		2022		Brick		$   115,000.00

		BRICHER PLACE		HILL ST		QUILL ST		2022		Poor		Mill & Overlay		200.06		0.04		18		TBD		TBD		$   16,500.00

		BRICHER PLACE		QUILL ST		CHERRY ST		2022		Poor		Mill & Overlay		166.07		0.03		15		TBD		TBD		$   16,500.00

		CHERRY ST		ROUTE 1		CHERRY ST EXT		2022		Poor		Reclamation		815.14		0.15		39		TBD		TBD		$   27,500.00

				CHERRY ST EXT		BRICHER PL		2022		Poor		Reclamation		616.88		0.12		53		TBD		TBD		$   27,500.00

		DEXTER LN		HIGH ST		DEAD END		2022		Poor		Mill & Overlay		843.05		0.16		52		TBD		TBD		$   36,000.00

		NEW PASTURE WY		GRAF RD		CUL DE SAC		2022		Fair		Mill & Overlay		1484.72		0.28		24		TBD		TBD		$   72,000.00

		QUILL ST		BRICHER PL		DEAD END		2022		Poor		Mill & Overlay		201.39		0.04		34		TBD		TBD		$   15,000.00

		STANLEY TUCKER DR		MALCOLM K. HOYT RD		CUL DE SAC		2022		Poor		Mill & Overlay		1019.63		0.19		43		TBD		TBD		$   61,000.00

		VERNON ST		CAREY AVE		DEAD END		2022		Very Poor		Reclamation		96.53		0.02		0		TBD		TBD		$   8,000.00

																		TOTAL 						$   625,000.00



		Ward 3 FY 25

		Street Name		From Street		To Street		Road Repair Year		General Condition		Proposed Repair Method		Length (Ft)		Length (Miles)		Road Surface Rating (RSR)		Sidewalk Repair Calendar Year		Sidewalk Material Proposed		Estimated Cost

		JOHNSON STREET		LOW ST		HIGH ST		2024		Poor		Mill & Overlay		1686.14		0.32		42		2024		TBD		$   458,931.11

		CALDWELLS COURT		MERRIMAC ST		DEAD END		2024		Poor		Mill & Overlay		147.07		0.03		32		2024		TBD		$   6,665.27

		BIRCH STREET		MARKET ST		SUMMER ST		2024		Poor		Mill & Overlay		179.28		0.03		40		2024		TBD		$   8,124.91

		CURRIERS COURT		KENT ST		DEAD END		2024		Fair		Mill & Overlay		152.68		0.03		75		2024		TBD		$   4,613.01

		PAPANTI COURT		OCEAN ST		DEAD END		2024		Fair		Mill & Overlay		167.61		0.03		79		2024		TBD		$   6,752.21

		PERKINS WAY		PARKER ST		PREBLE RD		2024		Fair		Mill & Overlay		962.78		0.18		69		2024		TBD		$   72,721.88

				PREBLE RD		CUL DE SAC		2024		Fair		Mill & Overlay		306.60		0.06		74		2024		TBD		$   23,158.70

																		TOTAL						$   580,967.10



		Ward 3 FY 27

		Street Name		From Street		To Street		Road Repair Year		General Condition		Proposed Repair Method		Length (Ft)		Length (Miles)		Road Surface Rating (RSR)		Sidewalk Repair Calendar Year		Sidewalk Material Proposed		Estimated Cost

		SUMMIT PLACE		TOPPAN'S LN		HIGH ST		2026		Poor		Mill & Overlay		1709.10		0.32		51		2026		TBD		$   387,050.50

		PREBLE ROAD		PERKINS WY		SPLIT		2026		Fair		Mill & Overlay		456.19		0.09		70		2026		TBD		$   27,565.76

				SPLIT		CUL DE SAC		2026		Poor		Mill & Overlay		496.15		0.09		42		2026		TBD		$   29,980.88

		COTTAGE COURT		POND ST		DEAD END		2026		Poor		Reclamation		478.25		0.09		30		2026		TBD		$   43,348.32

		EAGLE STREET		KENT ST		WARREN ST		2026		Poor		Mill & Overlay		487.16		0.09		45		2026		TBD		$   146,575.78

				WARREN ST		CARTER ST		2026		Poor		Mill & Overlay		271.40		0.05		39		2026		TBD		$   31,925.60

																		TOTAL						$   666,446.84





WARD4 

		Ward 4 FY 24

		Street Name		From Street		To Street		Road Repair Calendar Year		General Condition		Proposed Repair Method		Length (Ft)		Length (Miles)		Road Surface Rating (RSR)		Sidewalk Repair Calendar Year		Sidewalk Material Proposed		Estimated Cost

		ARLINGTON ST		HIGHLAND AVE		HIGH ST		2023		Very Poor		Reclamation		907.49		0.17		28		2022		Concrete		$   492,018.10

		CHRISTOPHER ST		PLUMMER AVE		JEFFERSON ST		2023		Very Poor		Reclamation		673.32		0.13		36		NA		NA		$   88,154.28

		MUNROE STREET		TYNG ST		OAKLAND ST		2023		Poor		Mill & Overlay		288.56		0.05		55		TBD		TBD		$   75,000.00

		WILLOW AVE		HIGH ST		MAPLE ST		2023		Very Poor		Reclamation		566.30		0.11		12		TBD		Asphalt		$   40,000.00

		TRACY STREET		NORTH ATKINSON ST		COLUMBUS AVE		2023		Poor		Mill & Overlay		523.39		0.10		20		TBD		TBD		$   42,000.00

																		TOTAL						$   655,172.38





		Ward 4 FY 26

		Street Name		From Street		To Street		Road Repair Calendar Year		General Condition		Proposed Repair Method		Length (Ft)		Length (Miles)		Road Surface Rating (RSR)		Sidewalk Repair Calendar Year		Sidewalk Material Proposed		Estimated Cost

		ADAMS STREET		JEFFERSON ST		UPLAND RD		2025		Poor		Mill & Overlay		411.05		0.08		45		2024		TBD		$   82,187.64

		ADAMS STREET		UPLAND RD		DEAD END		2025		Poor		Reclamation		114.33		0.02		16		2024		TBD		$   38,491.82

		ASHLAND COURT		ASHLAND ST		DEAD END		2025		Poor		Mill & Overlay		344.92		0.07		51		2024		TBD		$   20,842.31

		BUTLER STREET		MERRIMAC ST		HOWARD ST		2025		Poor		Mill & Overlay		486.81		0.09		42		2024		TBD		$   90,383.62

		CALIFORNIA STREET				WALNUT ST		2025		Poor		Mill & Overlay		323.16		0.06		43		2024		TBD		$   95,727.90

		DAWES STREET		COOLIDGE ST		ASHLAND ST		2025		Poor		Mill & Overlay		564.15		0.11		58		2024		TBD		$   42,341.12

		FARRELL STREET		RAWSON AVE		MCCLINTOCK AVE		2025		Poor		Mill & Overlay		597.80		0.11		57		2024		TBD		$   214,518.10

		FARRELL STREET		MCCLINTOCK AVE		COLUMBUS AVE		2025		Poor		Mill & Overlay		252.01		0.05		57		2024		TBD		$   47,545.18

		PLUMMER AVE		MERRIMAC ST		HIGH ST		2025		Very Poor		Reclamation		1544.34		0.29		22		2024		TBD		$   185,000.00

																		TOTAL						$   817,037.69











WARD5

		Ward 5 FY 23

		Street Name		From Street		To Street		Road Repair Calendar Year		General Condition		Proposed Repair Method		Length (Ft)		Length (Miles)		Road Surface Rating (RSR)		Sidewalk Repair Calendar Year		Sidewalk Material Proposed		Estimated Cost

		HIGHLAWN TER		HIGH ST		DEAD END		2022		Poor		Mill & Overlay		280.76		0.05		46		TBD		TBD		$   5,000.00

		HOPE AVE		ALBERTA AVE		IONA AVE		2022		Very Poor		Reclamation		505.73		0.10		37		TBD		TBD		$   33,000.00

		QUAIL RUN HOLLOW		DOE RUN DR		FOX RUN RD		2022		Poor		Mill & Overlay		379.59		0.07		49		TBD		TBD		$   23,333.33

				FOX RUN RD		PHEASANT RUN DR		2022		Poor		Mill & Overlay		374.55		0.07		49		TBD		TBD		$   23,333.33

				PHEASANT RUN DR		WILDWOOD DR		2022		Poor		Mill & Overlay		272.03		0.05		52		TBD		TBD		$   23,333.33

		FOX RUN DRIVE		SQUIRES GLEN		DRIVEWAY #11		2022		Fair		Mill & Overlay		583.98		0.11		60		TBD		TBD		$   42,000.00

				DRIVEWAY #11		QUAIL RUN HOLLOW		2022		Poor		Mill & Overlay		587.84		0.11		56		TBD		TBD		$   35,000.00

		SIMMONS DRIVE		NORTH ATKINSON ST		GOLDEN DR		2022		Fair		Mill & Overlay		258.37		0.05		66		TBD		TBD		$   12,333.33

				GOLDEN DR		GOLDEN DR		2022		Fair		Mill & Overlay		245.26		0.05		66		TBD		TBD		$   12,333.33

				GOLDEN DR		DEAD END		2022		Poor		Mill & Overlay		228.08		0.04		59		TBD		TBD		$   12,333.33

		STICKNEY AVENUE		ALBERTA AVE		LOW ST		2022		Fair		Mill & Overlay		549.74		0.10		70		TBD		TBD		$   26,000.00

		DOE RUN DRIVE		HALE ST 		CUL DE SAC		2022		Poor		Mill & Overlay		1200.00		0.23		63		TBD		TBD		$   79,000.00

																		TOTAL						$   248,000.00



		Ward 5 FY 25

		Street Name		From Street		To Street		Road Repair Calendar Year		General Condition		Proposed Repair Method		Length (Ft)		Length (Miles)		Road Surface Rating (RSR)		Sidewalk Repair Calendar Year		Sidewalk Material Proposed		Estimated Cost

		ALBERTA AVENUE		WILLIAMSON AVE		DEAD END		2024		Poor		Mill & Overlay		66.75		0.01		56		2023		TBD		$   4,033.48

				WILLIAMSON AVE		STICKNEY AVE		2024		Poor		Mill & Overlay		253.46		0.05		58		2023		TBD		$   15,315.49

				STICKNEY AVE		HOPE AVE		2024		Poor		Mill & Overlay		133.57		0.03		59		2023		TBD		$   8,070.94

				HOPE AVE		BRISSETTE AVE		2024		Poor		Mill & Overlay		107.29		0.02		54		2023		TBD		$   6,483.30

				BRISSETTE AVE		MYRTLE AVE		2024		Fair		Mill & Overlay		132.11		0.03		69		2023		TBD		$   7,982.68

				MYRTLE AVE		AVON ST		2024		Poor		Mill & Overlay		119.05		0.02		56		2023		TBD		$   7,193.57

				AVON ST		END		2024		Poor		Reclamation		75.45		0.01		34		2023		TBD		$   9,118.15

		BOWLEN AVENUE		IONA AVE		MYRTLE AVE		2024		Poor		Mill & Overlay		689.28		0.13		56		2023		TBD		$   41,651.11

		CHARMANSKI DRIVE		WILDWOOD DR		DEAD END		2024		Poor		Mill & Overlay		256.02		0.05		60		2023		TBD		$   58,489.60

		CHARRON DRIVE		NORTH ATKINSON ST		CUL DE SAC		2024		Poor		Reclamation		727.00		0.14		20		2023		TBD		$   80,538.38

		CROW LANE		TURKEY HILL RD		VIRGINIA LN		2024		Poor		Mill & Overlay		1294.63		0.25		60		2023		TBD		$   78,230.31

		RAWSON AVENUE		HIGH ST		LOIS ST 		2024		Poor		Mill & Overlay		1629.04		0.28		60		2023		TBD		$   90,000.00

																		TOTAL						$   317,107.00



		Ward 5 FY 27

		Street Name		From Street		To Street		Road Repair Calendar Year		General Condition		Proposed Repair Method		Length (Ft)		Length (Miles)		Road Surface Rating (RSR)		Sidewalk Repair Calendar Year		Sidewalk Material Proposed		Estimated Cost

		GOLDSMITHS DRIVE		LAVALEE LN		BRADBURY LN		2026		Poor		Mill & Overlay		317.291		0.060		59		2025		TBD		$   63,755.99

				BRADBURY LN		ANDERSON LN		2026		Fair		Mill & Overlay		314.388		0.060		65		2025		TBD		$   97,623.38

				ANDERSON LN		FRANCES DR		2026		Poor		Mill & Overlay		923.495		0.175		56		2025		TBD		$   248,425.97

				FRANCES DR		DEAD END		2026		Poor		Mill & Overlay		276.766		0.052		15		2025		TBD		$   52,047.35

		NORTH ATKINSON STREET		CHARRON DR		SIMMONS DR		2026		Poor		Mill & Overlay		448.81		0.09		43		2025		TBD		$   117,858.39

				SIMMONS DR		LOW ST		2026		Fair		Mill & Overlay		314.61		0.06		64		2025		TBD		$   35,645.86

		IONA AVENUE		HOPE AVE		BOWLEN AVE		2026		Poor		Mill & Overlay		123.69		0.02		58		2025		TBD		$   6,228.68

				BOWLEN AVE		MYRTLE AVE		2026		Poor		Mill & Overlay		123.76		0.02		52		2025		TBD		$   6,231.77

																		TOTAL						$   627,817.38





WARD6

		Ward 6 FY 24

		Street Name		From Street		To Street		Road Repair Calendar Year		General Condition		Proposed Repair Method		Length (Ft)		Length (Miles)		Road Surface Rating (RSR)		Sidewalk Repair Calendar Year		Sidewalk Material Proposed		Estimated Cost

		BOURBEAU TER		TURKEY HILL RD		TURKEY HILL RD		2023		Poor		Mill & Overlay		1994.67		0.38		44		2022		Asphalt		$   413,568.78

		NOBLE STREET		COOMBS CIR		STOREY AVE		2023		Very Poor		Reclamation		1358.77		0.26		20		NA		NA		$   164,212.35

		PETERS ROAD		MARQUAND RD		HAWTHORNE RD		2023		Poor		Mill & Overlay		497.63		0.09		55		NA		NA		$   30,070.29

																		TOTAL						$   607,851.42



		Ward 6 FY 26

		Street Name		From Street		To Street		Road Repair Calendar Year		General Condition		Proposed Repair Method		Length (Ft)		Length (Miles)		Road Surface Rating (RSR)		Sidewalk Repair Calendar Year		Sidewalk Material Proposed		Estimated Cost

		BRIGGS AVENUE		FERRY RD		FENDERS AVE		2025		Poor		Mill & Overlay		367.02		0.07		54		2024		TBD		$   22,177.72

				FENDERS AVE		BROWN AVE		2025		Poor		Mill & Overlay		268.89		0.05		54		2024		TBD		$   16,248.09

				BROWN AVE		CUL DE SAC		2025		Fair		Mill & Overlay		216.51		0.04		62		2024		TBD		$   11,993.90

		HOYTS LANE		STOREY AVE		DREW ST		2025		Poor		Mill & Overlay		839.87		0.16		57		2024		TBD		$   48,635.99

				DREW ST		CURZON'S MILL RD		2025		Poor		Mill & Overlay		2209.57		0.42		58		2024		TBD		$   127,954.01

		MOSELEY AVENUE		ERIE AVE		HARDING AVE		2025		Poor		Mill & Overlay		314.04		0.06		52		2024		TBD		$   69,329.74

				HARDING AVE		ELMIRA AVE		2025		Poor		Mill & Overlay		264.73		0.05		57		2024		TBD		$   42,700.18

																		TOTAL						$   339,039.63





Sidewalks 2022

		Ward		Street Name		From Street		To Street		Length (Ft)		Length (Mi)		Road Surface 
Rating (RSR)		Road Condition		Sidewalk + Curb Calendar Year		Road 
Calendar Year		Proposed Curb Mat'l		Current Sidewalk Mat'l		Current Sidewalk replacement
 Cost (FY22)		Proposed sidewalk material		Proposed Sidewalk Cost (FY22)		Planned Sidewalk Spending (FY22)		Funding Source

		1		ALTER COURT		BARTON ST		DEAD END		179.25		0.03		29		Poor		NA		2022		Granite		Concrete		$8,800.00		Asphalt		$9,000.00		$0.00		ARPA

		1		BARTON COURT		BARTON ST		DEAD END		203.92		0.04		10		Poor		NA		2022		Granite		None		$16,600.00		Asphalt		$9,000.00		$0.00		ARPA

		1		BARTON STREET		ALTER CT		BARTON CT		250.80		0.05		6		Poor		2022		2022		Granite		Concrete		$16,600.00		Asphalt		$9,000.00		$0.00		ARPA

		1		BARTON STREET		BARTON CT		CHESTNUT ST		260.75		0.05		6		Poor		2022		2022		Granite		Concrete		$16,600.00		Asphalt		$9,000.00		$0.00		ARPA

		1		BARTON STREET		HIGH ST		ALTER CT		395.97		0.07		20		Poor		2022		2022		Granite		Concrete		$16,600.00		Asphalt		$9,000.00		$0.00		ARPA

		2		FRUIT ST		HIGH ST		PROSPECT ST		576.47		0.11		59		Poor		2022		2023		Granite		Brick 		$116,000.00		Brick 		$116,000.00		$116,000.00		CP 90

		2		MIDDLE ST		CENTER ST		FAIR ST		339.00		0.06		51		Poor		2022		2023		Granite		Brick 		$69,000.00		Brick 		$69,000.00		$0.00		Meals

		2		FAIR ST		CHARTER ST		SPRING ST		139.00		0.03		28		Very Poor		2022		2023		Granite		Brick 		$40,625.00		Brick and Concrete		$29,281.25		$0.00		CP 90

		2		FAIR ST		ESSEX ST		MIDDLE ST		172.94		0.03		49		Poor		2022		2023		Granite		Brick 		$40,625.00		Brick and Concrete		$29,281.25		$0.00		CP 90

		2		FAIR ST		LIBERTY ST		WATER ST		530.66		0.10		61		Fair		2022		2023		Granite		Brick 		$40,625.00		Brick and Concrete		$29,281.25		$0.00		CP 90

		2		FAIR ST		MIDDLE ST		LIBERTY ST		187.88		0.04		58		Poor		2022		2023		Granite		Brick 		$40,625.00		Brick and Concrete		$29,281.25		$0.00		CP 90

		2		FAIR ST		ORANGE ST		CHARTER ST		63.49		0.01		23		Very Poor		2022		2023		Granite		Brick 		$40,625.00		Brick and Concrete		$29,281.25		$0.00		CP 90

		2		FAIR ST		PROSPECT ST		TEMPLE ST		166.30		0.03		60		Poor		2022		2023		Granite		Brick 		$40,625.00		Brick and Concrete		$29,281.25		$0.00		CP 90

		2		FAIR ST		SPRING ST		ESSEX ST		85.72		0.02		8		Very Poor		2022		2023		Granite		Brick 		$40,625.00		Brick and Concrete		$29,281.25		$0.00		CP 90

		2		FAIR ST		TEMPLE ST		ORANGE ST		171.49		0.03		34		Very Poor		2022		2023		Granite		Brick 		$40,625.00		Brick and Concrete		$29,281.25		$0.00		CP 90

		2		MIDDLE ST		FAIR ST		INDEPENDENT ST		193.43		0.04		29		Very Poor		2022		2023		Granite		Brick 		$69,000.00		Concrete		$39,333.33		$0.00		Meals

		2		MIDDLE ST		INDEPENDENT ST		FEDERAL ST		416.66		0.08		35		Very Poor		2022		2023		Granite		Brick 		$69,000.00		Concrete		$39,333.33		$0.00		Meals

		2		MILK ST		FEDERAL ST		LIME ST		612.10		0.12		59		Poor		2022		2023		Granite		Brick 		$145,500.00		Concrete		$64,000.00		$0.00		Meals

		2		MILK ST		LIME ST		FRANKLIN ST		501.89		0.10		37		Very Poor		2022		2023		Granite		Brick 		$145,500.00		Concrete		$64,000.00		$0.00		Meals

		3		BOARDMAN ST		ATKINSON ST		MERRIMAC ST		559.14		0.11		54		Poor		2022		2022		Granite		Brick 		$110,000.00		Brick 		$110,000.00		$110,000.00		CP 90

		3		BOARDMAN ST		HIGH ST		WASHINGTON ST		441.81		0.08		48		Poor		2022		2022		Granite		Brick 		$110,000.00		Brick 		$110,000.00		$110,000.00		CP 90

		3		BOARDMAN ST		WASHINGTON ST		ATKINSON ST		345.41		0.07		48		Poor		2022		2022		Granite		Brick 		$110,000.00		Brick 		$110,000.00		$110,000.00		CP 90

		4		ARLINGTON ST		HIGHLAND AVE		HIGH ST		907.49		0.17		28		Very Poor		2022		2023		Granite		Brick 		$658,000.00		Concrete 		$207,000.00		$207,000.00		Meals

		6		BOURBEAU TER		TURKEY HILL RD		TURKEY HILL RD		1994.67		0.38		44		Poor		2022		2023		Asphalt		Asphalt 		$52,000.00		Asphalt 		$52,000.00		$52,000.00		Meals

																												TOTAL		$1,259,916.67		$705,000.00





Surface treatment 

						Street Name		From Street		To Street		Year		Funding Source		General Condition		Proposed Repair Method		Length (Ft)		Length (Miles)		Road Surface Rating (RSR)		Estimated Total Cost (Includes Sidewalk Replace in Kind Cost Estimate)

						OLD POINT ROAD		FLORA ST		G ST		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		139.03		0.03		65		$   3,500.37

								G ST		H ST		2026		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		162.02		0.03		70		$   4,079.34

								H ST		IRIS ST		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		153.00		0.03		63		$   3,852.11

								IRIS ST		K ST		2026		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		281.98		0.05		68		$   7,099.64

								K ST		L ST		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		142.07		0.03		63		$   3,576.89

								L ST		M ST		2026		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		147.94		0.03		71		$   3,724.77

								M ST		N ST		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		148.70		0.03		63		$   3,743.93

								N ST		O ST		2026		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		144.26		0.03		69		$   3,632.14

								O ST		P ST		2026		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		101.07		0.02		73		$   2,544.79

						OVERLOOK STREET		64TH ST		66TH ST		2026		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		576.74		0.11		75		$   7,260.55

								76TH ST		DEAD END		2026		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		177.00		0.03		80		$   2,228.24

						P STREET		OLD POINT RD		DEAD END		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		276.71		0.05		67		$   4,180.13

						RESERVATION TERRACE		57TH ST		55TH ST		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		162.23		0.03		67		$   2,450.78

								61ST ST		GRANT ST		2026		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		70.53		0.01		84		$   1,065.41

								63RD ST		61ST ST		2026		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		152.03		0.03		81		$   2,296.63

								67TH ST		63RD ST		2026		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		310.52		0.06		80		$   4,690.87

								69TH ST		67TH ST		2026		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		160.18		0.03		81		$   2,419.79

								73RD ST		69TH ST		2026		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		323.35		0.06		79		$   4,884.69

								77TH ST		DEAD END		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		843.28		0.16		65		$   12,739.18

								GRANT ST		57TH ST		2026		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		248.23		0.05		78		$   3,749.99

						SHORE DRIVE		56TH ST		58TH ST		2026		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		152.08		0.03		73		$   2,297.41

								58TH ST		60TH ST		2026		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		173.04		0.03		82		$   2,614.00

								60TH ST		62ND ST		2026		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		157.35		0.03		84		$   2,376.97

								62ND ST		64TH ST		2026		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		163.97		0.03		82		$   2,476.98

								64TH ST		76TH ST		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		872.14		0.17		60		$   13,175.19

						NORTHERN BLVD		76TH ST		73RD ST		2025		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		93.03		0.02		68		$   2,576.40

						NORTHERN BLVD		77TH ST		76TH ST		2025		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		133.02		0.03		68		$   3,684.00

						NORTHERN BLVD		78TH ST		77TH ST		2025		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		607.24		0.12		68		$   16,817.93

						NORTHERN BLVD		80TH ST		78TH ST		2025		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		468.67		0.09		73		$   12,980.02

						NORTHERN BLVD		82NDST		80TH ST		2025		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		201.99		0.04		81		$   5,594.17

						NANCY STREET		OLD POINT RD		END		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		198.68		0.04		67		$   3,501.56

						NORTHERN BLVD		53RD ST		56TH ST		2025		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		50.73		0.01		68		$   1,405.04

						NORTHERN BLVD		55TH ST		58TH ST		2025		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		66.84		0.01		68		$   1,851.07

						NORTHERN BLVD		56TH ST		NEWBURY TL		2025		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		102.18		0.02		68		$   2,829.98

						NORTHERN BLVD		57TH ST		60TH ST		2025		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		50.98		0.01		68		$   1,411.93

						NORTHERN BLVD		58TH ST		53RD ST		2025		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		90.67		0.02		68		$   2,511.25

						NORTHERN BLVD		59TH ST		62ND ST		2025		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		44.04		0.01		68		$   1,219.59

						NORTHERN BLVD		60TH ST		55TH ST		2025		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		109.44		0.02		68		$   3,031.00

						NORTHERN BLVD		61ST ST		59TH ST		2025		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		141.13		0.03		70		$   3,908.63

						NORTHERN BLVD		62ND ST		57TH ST		2025		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		101.59		0.02		68		$   2,813.61

						NORTHERN BLVD		65TH ST		63RD ST		2025		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		137.64		0.03		68		$   3,811.95

						NORTHERN BLVD		66TH ST		61ST ST		2025		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		170.01		0.03		68		$   4,708.41

						NORTHERN BLVD		67TH ST		65TH ST		2025		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		161.01		0.03		68		$   4,459.29

						NORTHERN BLVD		69TH ST		70TH ST		2025		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		54.72		0.01		68		$   1,515.59

						NORTHERN BLVD		70TH ST		67TH ST		2025		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		82.88		0.02		68		$   2,295.42

						NORTHERN BLVD		71ST ST		72ND ST		2025		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		54.93		0.01		68		$   1,521.45

						NORTHERN BLVD		72ND ST		69TH ST		2025		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		104.19		0.02		68		$   2,885.53

						L ST		OLD POINT RD		DEAD END		2025		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		440.53		0.08		67		$   5,545.77

						LOUISA STREET		OLD POINT RD		DEAD END		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		171.59		0.03		63		$   2,160.17

						M ST		OLD POINT RD		DEAD END		2025		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		326.23		0.06		68		$   4,928.26

						MARTHA STREET		OLD POINT RD		DEAD END		2026		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		136.62		0.03		83		$   1,719.86

						H STREET		OLD POINT RD		DEAD END		2026		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		386.06		0.07		75		$   5,832.07

						HARBOR STREET		78TH ST		80TH ST		2026		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		438.86		0.08		81		$   7,734.67

						HELENA STREET		OLD POINT RD		DEAD END		2026		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		161.60		0.03		81		$   2,034.30

						HIGH ST E		BROMFIELD ST		BARTON ST		2024		$2M Budget		Poor		Surface Treatment		308.36		0.06		52		$   18,633.01

						I STREET		OLD POINT RD		DEAD END		2026		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		356.84		0.07		79		$   5,390.61

						IRIS STREET		OLD POINT RD		DEAD END		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		250.63		0.05		60		$   3,786.15

						JULIA STREET		OLD POINT RD		DEAD END		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		305.44		0.06		62		$   3,845.10

						K ST		OLD POINT RD		DEAD END		2025		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		734.61		0.14		70		$   9,247.90

						F STREET		HIGH ST		DEAD END		2026		$2M Budget		Poor		Mill & Overlay		121.30		0.02		48		$   3,054.10

						FLORA ST		OLD POINT RD		DEAD END		2023		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		347.27		0.07		72		$   4,371.71

						G STREET		OLD POINT RD		DEAD END		2026		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		223.78		0.04		78		$   3,943.92

						GLORIA ST		OLD POINT RD		DEAD END		2023		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		437.98		0.08		66		$   5,513.68

						74TH STREET		NORTHEN BLVD		DEAD END		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		148.23		0.03		63		$   1,866.01

						75TH STREET		NORTHERN BLVD		DEAD END		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		327.95		0.06		62		$   6,605.69

						76TH STREET		BARKER ST		OVERLOOK ST		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		143.24		0.03		63		$   3,606.34

								NORTHERN BLVD		BARKER ST		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		185.83		0.04		63		$   4,678.78

								OVERLOOK ST		BASIN ST		2026		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		105.49		0.02		75		$   2,655.95

						77TH STREET		NORTHERN BLVD		RESERVATION TER		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		258.20		0.05		63		$   3,900.59

						78TH STREET		NORTHERN BLVD		HARBOR ST		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		283.87		0.05		60		$   3,573.58

						69TH STREET		NORTHERN BLVD		RESERVATION TER		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		437.78		0.08		62		$   6,613.38

						70TH STREET		NORTHEN BLVD		DEAD END		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		313.20		0.06		63		$   4,731.41

						71ST STREET		NORTHERN BLVD		DEAD END		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		261.31		0.05		63		$   3,947.51

						72ND STREET		NORTHERN BLVD		DEAD END		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		217.85		0.04		66		$   2,742.54

						66TH STREET		NORTHERN BLVD		OVERLOOK ST		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		269.74		0.05		60		$   3,395.78

						67TH STREET		NORTHERN BLVD		RESERVATION TER		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		466.24		0.09		63		$   7,043.40

						64TH STREET		NORTHERN BLVD		OVERLOOK ST		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		373.03		0.07		60		$   5,635.30

						64TH STREET		OVERLOOK ST		SHORE DR		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		96.51		0.02		63		$   1,457.88

						64TH STREET		SHORE DR		SHORE DR		2026		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		80.29		0.02		80		$   1,212.90

						62ND STREET		SHORE DR		NORTHERN BLVD		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		482.91		0.09		60		$   7,295.18

						58TH STREET		NORTHERN BLVD		SHORE DR		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		500.57		0.09		62		$   6,301.67

						HIGH ST E		ALLEN ST		BROMFIELD ST		2024		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		280.30		0.05		66		$   16,937.58

								BARTON ST		MARLBORO ST		2024		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		251.17		0.05		63		$   15,177.34

								EPPA WY		POND ST		2024		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		180.51		0.03		67		$   8,180.82

								FEDERAL ST		LIME ST		2024		$2M Budget		Poor		Surface Treatment		610.73		0.12		60		$   36,904.20

								FRUIT ST		TREMONT ST		2024		$2M Budget		Poor		Surface Treatment		359.92		0.07		47		$   21,748.95

								LIME ST		PARSONS ST		2024		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		311.91		0.06		65		$   18,847.98

								PARK ST		EPPA WY		2024		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		67.91		0.01		80		$   3,077.74

								PARSONS ST		ALLEN ST		2024		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		240.81		0.05		64		$   14,551.61

								POND ST		STATE ST		2024		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		171.35		0.03		63		$   7,765.62

								STATE ST		FRUIT ST		2024		$2M Budget		Poor		Surface Treatment		503.67		0.10		58		$   30,434.97

								TREMONT ST		FEDERAL ST		2024		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		395.99		0.07		63		$   23,928.14

						HIGH ST E		AUBURN ST		COURT ST		2024		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		228.31		0.04		63		$   10,346.88

								COURT ST		GREEN ST		2024		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		352.19		0.07		69		$   15,961.16

								GREEN ST		PARK ST		2024		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		278.09		0.05		63		$   12,602.96

								MARKET ST		AUBURN ST		2024		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		105.53		0.02		65		$   4,782.68

								SUMMER ST		MARKET ST		2024		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		228.20		0.04		70		$   10,342.11

						ELM ST		PLUM ST		MERRIMAC ST		2024		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		379.40		0.07		63		$   48,041.95

						GRIFFINS CT		WARREN ST		CARTER ST		2024		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		218.50		0.04		58		$   3,851.03

						DALTON ST		HILL ST		GREEN LEAF		2023		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		450.87		0.09		71		$   17,028.04

						PAYSON ST		BEACON ST		WOODLAND ST		2024		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		403.85		0.08		53		$   79,328.64

								CHAPEL ST		BEACON ST		2024		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		241.23		0.05		55		$   65,693.33

						MYRTLE AVENUE		BOWLEN AVE		IONA AVE		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		455.85		0.09		70		$   13,772.87

								HIGH ST		BOWLEN AVE		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		706.05		0.13		70		$   82,317.39

								IONA AVE		ALBERTA AVE		2026		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		461.55		0.09		72		$   13,944.89

						COFFIN ST		MERRIMAC ST		DEAD END		2023		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		367.53		0.07		69		$   9,253.55

						CUTTERS CT		WARREN ST		CARTER ST		2024		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		233.13		0.04		63		$   4,108.79

						VIRGINIA LN		VIRGINIA LN-01		STOREY BROOK RD		2022		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		349.18		0.07		70		$   13,187.23

						ARTHUR WELCH		DANIEL LUCY WY		CUL DE SAC		2023		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		546.74		0.10		69		$   13,765.81

						ARTICHOKE TER		STOREY AVE		DEAD END		2023		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		368.74		0.07		72		$   7,427.19

						COOMBS CIR		NOBLE ST		CUL DE SAC		2022		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		641.16		0.12		68		$   19,371.59

						DREW ST		PHILLIPS DR		HOYTS LN		2023		Drainage Bond		Poor		Surface Treatment		384.51		0.07		43		$   - 0

								PHILLIPS DR		PHILLIPS DR		2023		Drainage Bond		Fair		Surface Treatment		1026.83		0.19		62		$   - 0

						DANIEL LUCY WAY		PINE HILL RD				2023		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		429.88		0.08		72		$   12,988.24

						HOYTS LN		DANIEL LUCY WAY				2023		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		1078.03		0.20		72		$   32,570.83

						EPPA WY		HIGH ST		POND ST		2024		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		176.22		0.03		68		$   5,767.98

						BASIN STREET		76TH ST		78TH ST		2023		$2M Budget		Good		Surface Treatment		625.58		0.12		73		$   15,750.80

						EPPA WY		HIGH ST		POND ST		2024		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		176.22		0.03		68		$   5,767.98

						ELMIRA AVE		MOSELEY AVE		FERRY RD		2024		$2M Budget		Fair		Surface Treatment		1294.70		0.25		69		$   45,636.72

																								TOTAL 		$   1,120,165.39






FY22 Roadway Plan

		Ward		Street Name		From Street		To Street		Length (Ft)		Length (Mi)		Road Surface 
Rating (RSR)		Road Condition		Sidewalk + Curb Calendar Year		Road 
Calendar Year		Proposed Road Repair		Underground Utilities		Staging		Proposed Curb Mat'l		Current Sidewalk Mat'l		Current Sidewalk replacement
 Cost (FY22)		Proposed sidewalk material		Cost with Proposed Material		Recommended Sidewalk Spending FY22		Roadway Cost (FY22)		Funding Source		Estimated Total Cost (Current State)		Estimated Total Cost (With Ordinance Change)

		1		WATER STREET		SHANDEL DR		UNION ST		761.96		0.14		59		Poor		NA		2022		Mill & Overlay		Checked		On Street		NA		NA		$0.00		NA		$0.00		$0.00		$22,750.00		ARPA		$22,750.00		$22,750.00

		1		WATER STREET		UNION ST		GOODWINS AVE		552.14		0.10		67		Fair		NA		2022		Mill & Overlay		Checked		On Street		NA		NA		$0.00		NA		$0.00		$0.00		$22,750.00		ARPA		$22,750.00		$22,750.00

		1		WATER STREET		GOODWINS AVE		WOODWELL AVE		405.10		0.08		63		Fair		NA		2022		Mill & Overlay		Checked		On Street		NA		NA		$0.00		NA		$0.00		$0.00		$22,750.00		ARPA		$22,750.00		$22,750.00

		1		WATER STREET		WOODWELL AVE		MARLBORO ST		274.48		0.05		59		Poor		NA		2022		Mill & Overlay		Checked		On Street		NA		NA		$0.00		NA		$0.00		$0.00		$22,750.00		ARPA		$22,750.00		$22,750.00

		1		ALTER COURT		BARTON ST		DEAD END		179.25		0.03		29		Poor		NA		2022		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		Granite		Concrete		$8,800.00		Asphalt		$9,000.00		$0.00		$14,000.00		ARPA		$22,800.00		$14,000.00

		1		BARTON COURT		BARTON ST		DEAD END		203.92		0.04		10		Poor		NA		2022		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		Granite		None		$16,600.00		Asphalt		$9,000.00		$0.00		$16,000.00		ARPA		$32,600.00		$16,000.00

		1		BARTON STREET		ALTER CT		BARTON CT		250.80		0.05		6		Poor		2022		2022		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		Granite		Concrete		$16,600.00		Asphalt		$9,000.00		$0.00		$24,000.00		ARPA		$40,600.00		$24,000.00

		1		BARTON STREET		BARTON CT		CHESTNUT ST		260.75		0.05		6		Poor		2022		2022		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		Granite		Concrete		$16,600.00		Asphalt		$9,000.00		$0.00		$24,000.00		ARPA		$40,600.00		$24,000.00

		1		BARTON STREET		HIGH ST		ALTER CT		395.97		0.07		20		Poor		2022		2022		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		Granite		Concrete		$16,600.00		Asphalt		$9,000.00		$0.00		$24,000.00		ARPA		$40,600.00		$24,000.00

		1		GOODWINS AVE		UNION ST		WATER ST		179.22		0.03		5		Very Poor		NA		2022		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		NA		None		$0.00		NA		$0.00		$0.00		$12,000.00		ARPA		$12,000.00		$12,000.00

		1		MILK ST		FRANKLIN ST		BROMFIELD ST		264.28		0.05		38		Very Poor		NA		2022		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		Granite		Brick 		$291,000.00		Concrete 		$128,000.00		$0.00		$31,666.67		ARPA		$322,666.67		$31,666.67

		2		FAIR ST		CHARTER ST		SPRING ST		139.00		0.03		28		Very Poor		2022		2023		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		Granite		Brick 		$40,625.00		Brick and Concrete		$40,625.00		$0.00		$0.00		CP 90		$40,625.00		$0.00

		2		FAIR ST		ESSEX ST		MIDDLE ST		172.94		0.03		49		Poor		2022		2023		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		Granite		Brick 		$40,625.00		Brick and Concrete		$40,625.00		$0.00		$0.00		CP 90		$40,625.00		$0.00

		2		FAIR ST		LIBERTY ST		WATER ST		530.66		0.10		61		Fair		2022		2023		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		Granite		Brick 		$40,625.00		Brick and Concrete		$40,625.00		$0.00		$0.00		CP 90		$40,625.00		$0.00

		2		FAIR ST		MIDDLE ST		LIBERTY ST		187.88		0.04		58		Poor		2022		2023		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		Granite		Brick 		$40,625.00		Brick and Concrete		$40,625.00		$0.00		$0.00		CP 90		$40,625.00		$0.00

		2		FAIR ST		ORANGE ST		CHARTER ST		63.49		0.01		23		Very Poor		2022		2023		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		Granite		Brick 		$40,625.00		Brick and Concrete		$40,625.00		$0.00		$0.00		CP 90		$40,625.00		$0.00

		2		FAIR ST		PROSPECT ST		TEMPLE ST		166.30		0.03		60		Poor		2022		2023		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		Granite		Brick 		$40,625.00		Brick and Concrete		$40,625.00		$0.00		$0.00		CP 90		$40,625.00		$0.00

		2		FAIR ST		SPRING ST		ESSEX ST		85.72		0.02		8		Very Poor		2022		2023		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		Granite		Brick 		$40,625.00		Brick and Concrete		$40,625.00		$0.00		$0.00		CP 90		$40,625.00		$0.00

		2		FAIR ST		TEMPLE ST		ORANGE ST		171.49		0.03		34		Very Poor		2022		2023		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		Granite		Brick 		$40,625.00		Brick and Concrete		$40,625.00		$0.00		$0.00		CP 90		$40,625.00		$0.00

		2		FRUIT ST		HIGH ST		PROSPECT ST		576.47		0.11		59		Poor		2022		2023		Mill & Overlay		Checked		On Street		Granite		Brick 		$116,000.00		Brick 		$116,000.00		$116,000.00		$0.00		CP 90		$116,000.00		$116,000.00

		2		MIDDLE ST		CENTER ST		FAIR ST		339.00		0.06		51		Poor		2022		2023		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		Granite		Brick 		$69,000.00		Brick 		$69,000.00		$0.00		$0.00		Meals		$69,000.00		$0.00

		2		MIDDLE ST		FAIR ST		INDEPENDENT ST		193.43		0.04		29		Very Poor		2022		2023		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		Granite		Brick 		$69,000.00		Concrete		$44,000.00		$0.00		$0.00		Meals		$69,000.00		$0.00

		2		MIDDLE ST		INDEPENDENT ST		FEDERAL ST		416.66		0.08		35		Very Poor		2022		2023		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		Granite		Brick 		$69,000.00		Concrete		$44,000.00		$0.00		$0.00		Meals		$69,000.00		$0.00

		2		MILK ST		FEDERAL ST		LIME ST		612.10		0.12		59		Poor		2022		2023		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		Granite		Brick 		$145,500.00		Concrete		$110,000.00		$0.00		$31,666.67		Meals		$177,166.67		$31,666.67

		2		MILK ST		LIME ST		FRANKLIN ST		501.89		0.10		37		Very Poor		2022		2023		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		Granite		Brick 		$145,500.00		Concrete		$110,000.00		$0.00		$31,666.67		Meals		$177,166.67		$31,666.67

		3		BOARDMAN ST		ATKINSON ST		MERRIMAC ST		559.14		0.11		54		Poor		2022		2022		Mill & Overlay		Checked		On Street		Granite		Brick 		$110,000.00		Brick 		$110,000.00		$110,000.00		$5,000.00		CP 90		$115,000.00		$115,000.00

		3		BOARDMAN ST		HIGH ST		WASHINGTON ST		441.81		0.08		48		Poor		2022		2022		Mill & Overlay		Checked		On Street		Granite		Brick 		$110,000.00		Brick 		$110,000.00		$110,000.00		$5,000.00		CP 90		$115,000.00		$115,000.00

		3		BOARDMAN ST		WASHINGTON ST		ATKINSON ST		345.41		0.07		48		Poor		2022		2022		Mill & Overlay		Checked		On Street		Granite		Brick 		$110,000.00		Brick 		$110,000.00		$110,000.00		$5,000.00		CP 90		$115,000.00		$115,000.00

		3		BRICHER PLACE		HILL ST		QUILL ST		200.06		0.04		18		Poor		NA		2022		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		NA		NA		$0.00		NA		$0.00		$0.00		$16,500.00		ARPA		$16,500.00		$16,500.00

		3		BRICHER PLACE		QUILL ST		CHERRY ST		166.07		0.03		15		Poor		NA		2022		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		NA		NA		$0.00		NA		$0.00		$0.00		$16,500.00		ARPA		$16,500.00		$16,500.00

		3		CHERRY ST		ROUTE 1		CHERRY ST EXT		815.14		0.15		39		Poor		NA		2022		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		NA		NA		$0.00		NA		$0.00		$0.00		$27,500.00		ARPA		$27,500.00		$27,500.00

		3		CHERRY ST		CHERRY ST EXT		BRICHER PL		616.88		0.12		53		Poor		NA		2022		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		NA		NA		$0.00		NA		$0.00		$0.00		$27,500.00		ARPA		$27,500.00		$27,500.00

		3		DEXTER LN		HIGH ST		DEAD END		843.05		0.16		52		Poor		NA		2022		Mill & Overlay		Checked		On Street		NA		NA		$0.00		NA		$0.00		$0.00		$36,000.00		ARPA		$36,000.00		$36,000.00

		3		NEW PASTURE WY		GRAF RD		CUL DE SAC		1484.72		0.28		24		Fair		NA		2022		Mill & Overlay		Checked		On Street		NA		NA		$0.00		NA		$0.00		$0.00		$72,000.00		ARPA		$72,000.00		$72,000.00

		3		QUILL ST		BRICHER PL		DEAD END		201.39		0.04		34		Poor		NA		2022		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		NA		NA		$0.00		NA		$0.00		$0.00		$15,000.00		ARPA		$15,000.00		$15,000.00

		3		STANLEY TUCKER DR		MALCOLM K. HOYT RD		CUL DE SAC		1019.63		0.19		43		Poor		NA		2022		Mill & Overlay		Checked		On Street		NA		NA		$0.00		NA		$0.00		$0.00		$61,000.00		ARPA		$61,000.00		$61,000.00

		3		VERNON ST		CAREY AVE		DEAD END		96.53		0.02		0		Very Poor		NA		2022		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		NA		NA		$0.00		NA		$0.00		$0.00		$8,000.00		ARPA		$8,000.00		$8,000.00

		4		ARLINGTON ST		HIGHLAND AVE		HIGH ST		907.49		0.17		28		Very Poor		2022		2023		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		Granite		Brick		$658,000.00		Concrete 		$207,000.00		$207,000.00		$0.00		Meals		$658,000.00		$207,000.00

		4		CHRISTOPHER ST		PLUMMER AVE		JEFFERSON ST		673.32		0.13		36		Very Poor		2022		2023		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		NA		None		$0.00		None		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		NA		$0.00		$0.00

		5		TRACY STREET		NORTH ATKINSON ST		COLUMBUS AVE		523.39		0.10		20		Poor		NA		2022		Mill & Overlay		Checked		On Street		NA		NA		$0.00		None		$0.00		$0.00		$42,000.00		ARPA		$42,000.00		$42,000.00

		5		HIGHLAWN TER		HIGH ST		DEAD END		280.76		0.05		46		Poor		NA		2022		Mill & Overlay		Checked		On Street		NA		NA		$0.00		None		$0.00		$0.00		$5,000.00		ARPA		$5,000.00		$5,000.00

		5		HOPE AVE		ALBERTA AVE		IONA AVE		505.73		0.10		37		Very Poor		NA		2022		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		NA		NA		$0.00		None		$0.00		$0.00		$33,000.00		ARPA		$33,000.00		$33,000.00

		5		QUAIL RUN HOLLOW		DOE RUN DR		FOX RUN RD		379.59		0.07		49		Poor		2022		2022		Mill & Overlay		Checked		On Street		Asphalt		Asphalt		$0.00		Asphalt		$0.00		$0.00		$23,333.33		ARPA		$23,333.33		$23,333.33

		5		QUAIL RUN HOLLOW		FOX RUN RD		PHEASANT RUN DR		374.55		0.07		49		Poor		NA		2022		Mill & Overlay		Checked		On Street		NA		NA		$0.00		None		$0.00		$0.00		$23,333.33		ARPA		$23,333.33		$23,333.33

		5		QUAIL RUN HOLLOW		PHEASANT RUN DR		WILDWOOD DR		272.03		0.05		52		Poor		NA		2022		Mill & Overlay		Checked		On Street		NA		NA		$0.00		None		$0.00		$0.00		$23,333.33		ARPA		$23,333.33		$23,333.33

		5		SIMMONS DRIVE		NORTH ATKINSON ST		GOLDEN DR		258.37		0.05		66		Fair		NA		2022		Mill & Overlay		Checked		On Street		NA		NA		$0.00		None		$0.00		$0.00		$12,333.33		ARPA		$12,333.33		$12,333.33

		5		SIMMONS DRIVE		GOLDEN DR		GOLDEN DR		245.26		0.05		66		Fair		NA		2022		Mill & Overlay		Checked		On Street		NA		NA		$0.00		None		$0.00		$0.00		$12,333.33		ARPA		$12,333.33		$12,333.33

		5		SIMMONS DRIVE		GOLDEN DR		DEAD END		228.08		0.04		59		Poor		NA		2022		Mill & Overlay		Checked		On Street		NA		NA		$0.00		None		$0.00		$0.00		$12,333.33		ARPA		$12,333.33		$12,333.33

		5		STICKNEY AVENUE		ALBERTA AVE		LOW ST		549.74		0.10		70		Fair		NA		2022		Mill & Overlay		Checked		On Street		NA		NA		$0.00		None		$0.00		$0.00		$26,000.00		ARPA		$26,000.00		$26,000.00

		5		DOE RUN DRIVE		HALE ST 		CUL DE SAC		1200.00		0.23		63		Poor 		NA		2022		Mill & Overlay		Checked		On Street		NA		NA		$0.00		None		$0.00		$0.00		$79,000.00		ARPA		$79,000.00		$79,000.00

		5		FOX RUN DRIVE		SQUIRES GLEN		QUAIL RUN HOLLOW		1171.82		0.22		58		Poor		NA		2022		Mill & Overlay		Checked		On Street		Asphalt		Asphalt		$0.00		Asphalt		$40,000.00		$0.00		$77,000.00		ARPA		$77,000.00		$77,000.00

		6		BOURBEAU TER		TURKEY HILL RD		TURKEY HILL RD		1994.67		0.38		44		Poor		2022		2023		Mill & Overlay		Checked		On Street		Asphalt		Asphalt 		$52,000.00		Asphalt 		$52,000.00		$52,000.00		$0.00		Meals		$52,000.00		$52,000.00

		6		NOBLE STREET		COOMBS CIR		STOREY AVE		1358.77		0.26		20		Very Poor		NA 		2023		Reclamation		Checked		On Street		NA		None		$0.00		None		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		NA		$0.00		$0.00

		6		PETERS ROAD		MARQUAND RD		HAWTHORNE RD		497.63		0.09		55		Poor		NA		2023		Mill & Overlay		Checked		On Street		NA		None		$0.00		None		$0.00		$0.00		$0.00		NA		$0.00		$0.00

																																												Total		$1,669,000.00





Chart with Spending

		Row Labels		Sum of Estimated Total Cost (With Ordinance Change)

		ARPA		$   885,666.67

		CP 90		$   461,000.00

		Meals		$   322,333.33

		NA		$   - 0

		Grand Total		$   1,669,000.00







